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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES
QAR EMMEEHH

As at 1 January 2024
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Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Principal Place of Business
24th Floor

Emperor Group Centre

288 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
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Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
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— Latest time to lodge transfers
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27 February 2024
(before 4:30 p.m))

Corporate Communications

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”)
on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company.
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RESULTS SUMMARY
XEME

The board of directors (“Board” or “Directors”) of Emperor Capital
Group Limited (“Company”) presents the audited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as "Group”) for the year ended 30 September 2023 (“Year").

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HREEAEEERRE (KRB 2EEE
(EEg R EFNRELALRINENE
NE)(HEBAIAREE)) B E20235F9830
BEFE(XREFE )2 RKBRIEGEE -

MBEHE

For the year ended
30 September

# ZoH30HILLEFEE

2023

441,046 512,824
323,071 418,503
98,228 76,358
13,275 11,140
6,472 6,823

403,638 590,095

160,638 299,234

HK2.38 cents #{lI [EICRYRE 12

Total revenue AN
Financing B®
Brokerage Services KA R
Corporate Finance TEME
Placing & Underwriting Aic & B 61 35
Impairment allowances” AERE
Net loss 18
Basic loss per share SREXREIE
* Represents the net impairment allowances for margin loans, other loans

and advances

* EHRER HMERLRBRZBAERMB
FER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE w2

Results

Although the global economy is on the road to recovery, capital
markets have been experiencing setbacks due to ongoing macro-
economic issues which have inevitably affected the Group’s
businesses; hence the Group’s total revenue was HKS$441.0
million (2022: HKS512.8 million) during the Year. Net impairment
allowances for margin loans, other loans and advances
(“Impairment Allowances”) decreased to HK$403.6 million (2022:
HKS$590.1 million), resulting in the Group's net loss narrowing to
HKS$160.6 million (2022: HKS$299.2 million) during the Year. Basic
loss per share was HK2.38 cents (2022: HK4.44 cents).

Market Review

Due to a series of global events including tightened monetary
policies, inflationary pressure, interest rate hikes, ongoing
geopolitical tensions, China property developers’ debt issues, the
macro-economic environments were volatile during the Year, which
led to a fragile investment sentiment across global markets and
impacted business confidence.

During the Year, banks and money lenders adopted a cautious
approach and further tightened their credit control to minimise
default risks; plus the sustained high interest rate which resulted in
property prices softening, in turn lowering valuations of collaterals
and affecting the financing market. In the meantime, investors
shifted their portfolios to lower risk investments or fixed income
products amid volatile market conditions, hence trading volumes
of stock markets remained weak. The Hang Seng Index fluctuated
during the Year — touching its lowest at 14,687 on 31 October 2022
and reaching its highest at 22,689 on 27 January 2023, and closing
at 17,810 on 29 September 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEwR I

Business Review

Established in 1993, the Group is a renowned financial institution
providing one-stop financial services including (i) commercial
and personal lending as well as margin and initial public offering
("IPO") financing; (i) brokerage services, wealth management and
asset management; (iii) placing and underwriting services for listed
issuers; and (iv) corporate finance advisory services. The Company
was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Stock Exchange”) in April 2007.

During the Year, the adoption of a new Chinese name — "“HE2 &7
E£BEEBRAB" - as a secondary name of the Company became
effective. Since then, Emperor Capital Limited (22 EHBELRT),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been renamed as
Emperor Corporate Finance Limited (E2 ¥ BmEERLQE) . In
addition, the Chinese name of Emperor Securities Limited, another
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been changed from
"HEFSBEBERAE to "BEFZSFERAE", while the
English name remained unchanged. Details of these changes were
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 31 March 2023.

(APITIL, CEOL:

5% %5 [o] k&

AEEBRI993FRLIL > B —EIE BB R
B RE-EAERMRTE > 2FEOBEK
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREA KR

Financing

The Group's financing segment derives interest income from
commercial and personal lending as well as margin and IPO
financing. The loans granted to customers range from short-term
unsecured loans (e.g. tax loan, bridging loan, term loan and personal
loan) to long-term secured loans (e.g. property mortgage). Built on
a renowned reputation for delivering professional and personalised
loan services, the Group has developed a niche in the loan market,
providing corporate and retail clients with tailored liquidity solutions
to meet their corporate goals and personal needs.

During the Year, the Group continued to adhere to its cautious
approach and adopted a stringent credit risk management and
control mechanism, in order to minimise default risks. The Group
adjusted the interest rate and loan-to-value ratio on a timely basis,
according to the market situation. During the Year, the segment’s
revenue was HKS$323.1 million (2022: HKS418.5 million), accounting
for 73.3% (2022: 81.6%) of the Group's total revenue.

Brokerage Services

The Group currently provides brokerage services for securities,
futures and options traded on exchanges in Hong Kong, mainland
China (via Shanghai and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect
schemes respectively) and major overseas countries, as well as
wealth management and asset management services. The Group
offers web-based and mobile trading platforms which enable real-
time transaction and investment portfolio monitoring. As at 30
September 2023, the Group operated 2 branches in Hong Kong
and 3 liaison offices in mainland China, which are located in
Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou respectively. The Group’'s wealth
management division provides advice regarding a wide array of
investment services, including securities, mutual funds, insurance-
linked products, and real estate investment. In its asset management
arm, apart from running private equity fund, the Group also provides
customised discretionary investment services to its customers.

During the Year, the Group arranged online and offline seminars
via “Sun Channel’, a self-operated financial channel on YouTube,
to engage its customers. It also updated its frontend and backend
trading systems, and launched the eGOi app near the end of the
Year, to optimise the trading experience for customers.

During the Year, revenue from the brokerage services segment
increased to HKS98.2 million (2022: HKS76.4 million), accounting
for 22.2% (2022: 14.9%) of the Group’s total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Corporate Finance

The division holds a full corporate finance advisory licence under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, allowing it to advise on
Takeovers Code related transactions and undertake sponsor work
for IPOs in addition to general corporate finance advisory services.
Apart from IPO-related services, the Group offers advisory services
for corporate transactions including placing, rights issue, corporate
restructuring and merger and acquisition. During the Year, the Group
continued to partake in fundraising projects, with involvement in
multiple roles.

During the Year, the Group was one of the Joint Sponsors and
Overall Coordinators in the IPO of New Media Lab Limited ("New
Media Lab”; Stock Code: 1284), with the shares listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange in July 2023. The Group also handled
several corporate transactions during the Year, hence revenue from
the corporate finance segment increased to HK$13.3 million (2022:
HKS11.1 million), accounting for 3.0% (2022: 2.2%) of the Group's
total revenue.

Placing and Underwriting

With a highly experienced team of professionals, the Group offers
placing and underwriting services to listed issuers. The Group
serves as placing agents in equity and debt placing deals and IPO-
related transactions. The Group also participates in underwriting
rights issue exercises.

During the Year, revenue from the placing and underwriting segment
was HKS$6.5 million (2022: HKS6.8 million), accounting for 1.5%
(2022: 1.3%) of the Group's total revenue. During the Year, the Group
was one of the Joint Coordinators, Joint Bookrunners and Joint
Lead Managers in the IPO of New Media Lab.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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'ECG 16" LISTING
ANNIVERSARY

Outlook

Subsequent to the Year, growths of major economies are moderating;
other factors such as volatility arising from geopolitics and rising
concerns over extreme weather-related events also dampen
economic activities. Although interest rate rises may slow, lending
conditions may remain tight. In the meantime, the deepening slump
in China’s property market is casting a shadow over global growth
prospects.

On the other hand, an assessment report released by the International
Monetary Fund reaffirmed Hong Kong's role as a major international
financial hub, after analysing and assessing the city’s economic
and financial situation, especially its recovery with post-Covid
normalisation of economic activity. With its strategic role in the
Greater Bay Area, Hong Kong continues to serve as mainland
China’'s gateway to the world, and the Group is poised to benefit
from Hong Kong's connectivity with regional and global economies.

Going forward, the Group will continue to strengthen its wealth
solutions team in order to drive the Group’s business developments
covering global investment, wealth management and asset
management. The Group will also continue to expand its high
net worth customer base by providing tailor-made solutions and
enriching its product offerings. Besides, the Group will further
enhance its eGOi app, in order to boost its retail market segment
competitiveness. In the face of a challenging economic environment,
the Group will adhere to its prudent approach and adopt appropriate
strategies while seizing opportunities, to maintain steady businesses
development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Financial Information

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources
The Group financed its operations by cash mainly generated from
business operations and borrowings. As at 30 September 2023, the
Group’s current assets and current liabilities were HKS4,712.5 million
(2022: HKS4,984.9 million) and HKS$1,792.0 million (2022: HKS2,134.5
million) respectively. As at 30 September 2023, aggregate of bank
balances, cash and pledged bank deposits of the Group amounted
to HKS1,162.3 million (2022: HKS1,020.8 million), which were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

As at 30 September 2023, the Group's bank borrowings decreased
to HKS$210.0 million (2022: HKS$430.0 million), hence the gearing
ratio decreased to 6.2% (2022: 12.1%; calculated as a percentage of
total borrowings over total equity of the Group). The Group did not
have any material foreign exchange exposure as at 30 September
2023.

With the Group’s sufficient bank balances and cash, as well as its
available unutilised banking facilities of HKS1,765.0 million (2022:
HKS2,049.0 million), the Board considers the Group has sufficient
working capital for its operation and future development.

HIEER ) .
BXEEBE -RHEERMHBEER
AEBFERBLCEERNEEEENR
TAHEXFEERMES R 2023F9AH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREA KR

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 September 2023, bank deposit of the Group with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$160.0 million (2022: HKS$160.0 million) was
pledged to a bank as security for banking facilities.

Impairment Allowances

An Impairment Allowances of HKS$403.6 million (2022: HKS$590.1
million) was recognised this Year. The Impairment Allowances
was made in respect of certain margin clients and borrowers in
commercial, mortgage and personal loans. Details of the reasons
for the recognition of majority of the Impairment Allowances are
set out below:

1.

Net provision for impairment of accounts receivable
arising from margin financing amounted to approximately
HKS204.4 million

a.

During the Year, advances to twenty-six customers in
margin financing with the total gross carrying amount
of approximately HKS1,336.8 million as at 30 September
2023 were assessed as credit-impaired stage mainly due
to further decline in the market price of listed securities
pledged as collateral in the Year and failure of the
margin borrowers to fully make up the margin shortfall
by providing additional collaterals or repayment. The
Impairment Allowances of these twenty-six exposures for
the Year was determined by assessing the future cash
flows expected to be recoverable from the borrowers
and the listed securities pledged as collateral for each
of the margin borrowers on an individual assessment
basis. Impairment provision with a total amount of
approximately HK$200.6 million was made for the Year
for these twenty-six exposures.

During the Year, an Impairment Allowances of approximately
HKS61.0 million was made on advances to two customers
in margin financing with the total gross carrying amount
of approximately HKS61.0 million as at 30 September 2023
were assessed as credit-impaired stage due to suspension
of trading of the listed securities pledged as collateral in
the Year and failure of the margin borrowers to fully make
up the margin shortfall by providing additional collateral or
repayment.

During the Year, an impairment reversal of approximately
HKS57.2 million was made on advances to six customers
in margin financing with the total gross carrying amount
of approximately HK$415.2 million as at 30 September
2023, which were classified as credit-impaired stage,
due to settlement received upon repayment and/or
enforcement of collateral in the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE R

2.  Net provision for impairment of loans and advances
amounted to approximately HKS197.5 million

a.

P 12

During the Year, additional impairment allowance of
approximately HK$94.9 million was recognised for eight
loans and advances, which were assessed as credit-
impaired stage in previous year, with the total gross
carrying amount of approximately HK$440.8 million as at
30 September 2023, as a result of further decrease in fair
value of pledged listed securities, pledged properties and
deterioration of financial capability of these borrowers.

During the Year, loans and advances to twenty-six
borrowers with the total gross carrying amount of
approximately HKS$434.9 million as at 30 September
2023 were assessed as credit-impaired stage mainly due
to failure of these borrowers to repay the interest and/or
the principal and decline in the market price of pledged
properties. The Impairment Allowances of these twenty-
six exposures for the Year was determined by assessing
the future cash flows expected to be recoverable from
the borrowers and the pledged properties for each of
the borrowers on an individual assessment basis taking
into account of current market conditions and forward
looking factors. Impairment Allowances with a total
amount of approximately HKS$124.3 million was made
for the Year for these twenty-six exposures.

During the Year, loans and advances to four borrowers
with the total gross carrying amount of approximately
HK$29.3 million as at 30 September 2023 were assessed
as credit-impaired stage mainly due to failure of these
borrowers to repay the interest and/or the principal on
time in the Year. The Impairment Allowances of these
four exposures for the Year was determined by assessing
the future cash flow expected to be recoverable from
the borrowers including an assessment of cash flows
expected to be recovered taking account of the current
conditions affecting the borrower, past collection history,
and consideration of forward looking factors. Impairment
Allowances with a total amount of approximately HK$17.7
million was made for the Year for these four exposures.

During the Year, an impairment reversal of approximately
HKS$39.4 million was made to seven borrowers in loans
and advances, which were classified as credit-impaired
stage, due to settlement received upon full or partial
repayment in the Year. The total gross carrying amount
was approximately HK$55.9 million as at 30 September
2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREA KR

Follow-up and debt collection actions on overdue
and defaulted loans

The Group has debt recovery procedures in place. For any loans
with shortfall and/or overdue payments, demand letters and legal
letters will be issued. If the borrower does not respond, the Group
will engage external legal advisors for legal actions. At the same
time, the Group will contact the borrower for additional collateral
and/or settlement plan. The Group may also engage debt collection
agents for such loan where appropriate. If the negotiation is not
successful, or additional collateral is not sufficient or default in
settlement plan, external legal advisers will issue final warning to
the borrower. Subsequently, writs of summon will be served to the
borrower to take proceedings to court.

Debt recovery actions had been taken on the credit-impaired loans.
Some legal proceedings on such credit-impaired loans were still in
progress.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 30 September 2023, the Group had 83 (2022: 76) account
executives and 139 (2022: 131) employees. Total staff costs (including
Directors’ remuneration) were approximately HK$72.0 million (2022:
HKS72.9 million). Each employee’'s remuneration was determined in
accordance with individual's responsibilities, competence and skills,
experience and performance as well as market pay levels. Staff
benefits include medical and life insurance, provident funds and other
competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which are set out in
the section headed “Share Options” of this annual report.

Final Dividend

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for
the Year (2022: Nil).

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREE B[R AT
Annual Report 2022 / 2023 FE#R

538 8 2 6 % S BN 0 R 3 RSB Y
BT H)
AEFBERIBBEFNER - HREMAEAR
BN HWEPCTHRNER  FE LR
R R E R o MERARERERE -
KEEFZEIINPEFZBEMHEIBOEET
g o B> NEERFBEERALUEIRZE
SMEFR R st A8 o AEEIR
HeETEEEBR TN ERERZEBWER
B o MARBEZEMGE > NEIMNEFRTE
FEBFAERELN > SIERERRED
ERANBHERES  HEBOERAZE
EEASNK > UEAPRIEESRER o

AEBEEMCEECEEREZERHKRE
BENTH A TERCEEEEREZ
ERBVERFRDEETT -

2 8 R % B B 5

7L2023F0H30H » A& B H83 (20224 ¢
76) & B P AR 2139 (20224F 1 131) & &
B - BETMABBEREEEMNE)NA
72,000,000 7T (20224 : 72,900,000
T BREEFMIIREBEREZHE -
BE I M B BE ~ KRB N TR IR A KT 15 B K
FTETE BIRANNESEEBENASZSRRE
rEEMNEMERZFHEERAETE

ARBERMEBIRESE > UMmE THRM
HEOK EFBRARTFRBER
R —8 o

FxERE

BEEECLERTESHEIEE RBEMK
HA PG B (20224F @ 4®) o

13 {4



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFNESHREEEBZEE

DAISY YEUNG

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
AND CHAIRPERSON

B
HITESRER

Executive Director and Chairperson

Daisy Yeung, aged 58, joined the Group in January 1996. She
is the Chairperson of the Board and Managing Director as well
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Ms. Yeung is the
Chairperson of the Executive Committee as well as a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. She is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company, including Emperor Securities
Limited, Emperor Futures Limited, Emperor Wealth Management
Limited and Emperor Asset Management Limited, all of which
she is also a responsible officer under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"). Moreover, Ms. Yeung is now the Permanent
Honorary President and Director of The Institute of Securities
Dealers Limited, a General Committee member of The Chamber of
Hong Kong Listed Companies, a member of Advisory Committee of
the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council and a member of
Market Development Committee of Financial Services Development
Council. She has accumulated over 27 years of management
experience in financial industry and has been active in driving the
development of the local securities industry. Ms. Yeung holds a
Bachelor’s Degree of Science in Business Administration.

P 4
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESENEREEEBZERE

Executive Directors

Wong Chi Fai, aged 67, joined the Group in December 2022. He is
an Executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company as well as a
director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Wong has over 30 years
of finance and management experience in different businesses
ranging from financial and securities services, property investment
and development, hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and
jewellery, wholesaling and retailing of furniture, cinema development
and operation to entertainment production and investment, artiste
management as well as media and publication. He is currently a
director of Emperor International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163)
("Emperor International”), Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited
(Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor E Hotel”), Emperor Watch & Jewellery
Limited (Stock Code: 887) (“Emperor W&J"), Emperor Culture Group
Limited (Stock Code: 491) (“Emperor Culture”), Ulferts International
Limited (Stock Code: 1711) (“Ulferts”) and New Media Lab Limited
(Stock Code: 1284) (“New Media Lab"), all being listed members of
Emperor Group. Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa, aged 60, joined the Group in December
2022. She is an Executive Director of the Company, a member of
the Executive Committee and the Chairperson of the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company as well as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Fan has over 34 years
of corporate management experience in diversified businesses
ranging from financial and securities services, property investment
and development, hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and
jewellery, wholesaling and retailing of furniture, cinema development
and operation to entertainment production and investment, artiste
management as well as media and publication. Ms. Fan is currently
a director of Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor
W&J, Emperor Culture, Ulferts and New Media Lab, all being listed
members of Emperor Group. She is a lawyer by profession in Hong
Kong and a qualified accountant, and holds a Master's Degree in
Business Administration.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESENEREEBZERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Wan Choi Ha, aged 56, joined the Board in July 2015. She is the
Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well as a member of
the Audit Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee of
the Company. Ms. Wan has been admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong since 1993 and is now a Senior Partner of Wan and Leung,
Solicitors. Ms. Wan graduated from The University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws.

Wong Tak Ming, Gary, aged 48, joined the Board in February 2022.
He is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. He now runs a professional accountancy firm in Hong
Kong and has over 20 years of experience in the field of auditing and
accounting. Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director
of Emperor International from August 2013 to August 2022. He is
a certified public accountant (practising), a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong.

Yu King Tin, aged 57, joined the Board in February 2023. He is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yu has worked in various
organizations including international certified public accountants
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. He is currently one of the
senior management in the finance department of a conglomerate
in Hong Kong. Mr. Yu was an independent non-executive director
of Emperor E Hotel from August 2013 to August 2022. Mr. Yu
graduated from the Peking University with a Bachelor’s Degree in
Law and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Master’s
Degree in Corporate Finance. Mr. Yu is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a
Certified Tax Advisor and a member of the Society of Registered
Financial Planner.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREGHRS

The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Adoption of Chinese Name as Secondary Name
Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 February 2023 (2023 AGM")
and approval by the Registrar of Companies of Bermuda on 13
March 2023, the Chinese name of the Company "2 2&AXEEH
fR ‘A B]" was adopted as the secondary name of the Company.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the provision of financial services, including
(i) commercial and personal lending as well as margin and IPO
financing; (ii) brokerage services, wealth management and asset
management; (i) placing and underwriting services for listed
issuers; and (iv) corporate finance advisory services. Details of the
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 70 of this annual report.

No interim dividend (2022: Nil) was paid during the Year and the
Board did not recommend any payment of a final dividend for the
Year (2022: Nil).

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis of
the Group’s performance during the Year, important events occurred
after the reporting period and an analysis of the likely future
development of the Group'’s business are set out in the Management
Discussion and Analysis from pages 5 to 13 of this annual report.
Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from pages 33 to
62 of this annual report and notes 36 and 38 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Save as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
there is no important event affecting the Group that had occurred
since the end of the Year up to the date of this annual report.
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In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the Five-
year Financial Summary on page 176. Discussion on the Group's
environmental policies and performance, key relationships with the
Group’s key stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the 2022/2023 Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Company.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 176 of this annual
report.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves and Distributable Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 73 of this annual report.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders
as at 30 September 2023 represented the aggregate of contributed
surplus (stated as “special reserve” in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements) and accumulated loss amounting to
approximately HKS$102.0 million (2022: HKS$102.0 million) and
HKS$303.7 million (2022: HKS$460.9 million) respectively.

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the subsidiaries
of the Company in issue and the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company for acquisition of a subsidiary pursuant to the group
reorganisation on 2 April 2007.

Under the Companies Act in 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to
the Shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i)  the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.
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Donations
During the Year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
approximately HKS143,000.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
26 January 2017 (“Share Option Scheme”) as set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreement
was entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

Property and Equipment
During the Year, the Group acquired property and equipment at a
cost of approximately HKS3.4 million.

Details of changes in the property and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 6% (2022: 15%)
of the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer accounted for
2% (2022: 5%) of the Group's total turnover.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests
in the Group's five largest customers.

The Group had no major supplier due to the nature of principal
activities of the Group.
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Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Daisy Yeung (Chairperson)

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (appointed on 1 December 2022)

Ms. Fan Man Seung Vanessa (appointed on 1 December 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Wan Choi Ha

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary

Mr. Yu King Tin (appointed on 28 February 2023)
Mr. Poon Yan Wai (retired on 28 February 2023)

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as at
the date of this annual report are set out from pages 14 to 16 of
this annual report. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out
in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-laws 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Wan Choi Ha and Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary shall
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“2024
AGM"). Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary, being eligible, offers himself
for re-election thereat while Ms. Wan Choi Ha who served as
independent non-executive director of the Company (“INED") for
almost 9 years, being eligible but does not offer herself for re-
election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2024 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during the
Year.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are
provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and
officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of
potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against the Directors and the directors of the Group
respectively.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Securities

As at 30 September 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (“Chief Executives”)
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors adopted by the Company (“ECG
Securities Code”) were as follows:

Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HKS0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”)

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interests

EEns

g1 HEtE

Ms. Daisy Yeung

BRFL L discretionary trust
IWARBEFEZEERR T A
Beneficial owner
E@mEAA
Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Capital Group Holdings Limited, a

wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Capital Holdings Limited (“AY
Capital Holdings”). AY Capital Holdings was in turn held by CDM Trust
& Board Services AG (“CDM Trust”) in trust for a private discretionary
trust of which Ms. Daisy Yeung is one of the eligible beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2023, none of the
Directors nor Chief Executives had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO).

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREE B[R AT
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Eligible beneficiary of a private

ESRERITHRASZESED

JR2023F9H30H ' EFENARBZ RS
THAB(RSTBABDKRAREARE
HEOEE (E&E REBHFMHAEHRG SEXVER)
Zi ~ RO REEZPESLEN
KRBREEF N E R F35215 A
FREEMVBBEBRATMRMNESE
TRFEXHZBRETU(REELEEE
FTR)BRBTNE RNAE K Pz #
mAoKkE WM

BREQBIZFE#ERS
ELEEREE.01ETZEER (TR%))

Number Approximate %
of Shares of issued
interested voting Shares

HEHT
HEEHED BEREE
Rz 3 88 B 13 % 49 %
2,879,521,438 4272
(Note)
(K7 5E)
18,000,000 0.26

fat: ZERODIDHABSHNERZEREREAT
MBERERER)Z2ENBATHE
SEAEETERERLADFTE - BIEM
& A B HCDM Trust & Board Services
AG (TCDM Trusty) MU B —BFA A
MEGETE(BRFLITAZETZAER
SHmAZ)EE

Br £ Pk B2 & 5b 0 1R202359H308 »
MEEFXKRSTHRAERETATHEE
AR EE(EERBHALPERLGFEXY
Mz  HRERDRERERERE
PRmIKA °
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Share Options

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme, particulars
of which are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements. No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

The number of share options available for grant under the scheme
mandate as at the beginning and the end of the Year respectively
was 674,084,572, representing 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of this annual report.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at the end
of the Year and at no time during the Year was the Company, any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors or Chief Executives or
their spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares

So far as is known to any Directors or Chief Executives, as at 30
September 2023, the persons or corporations (other than a Director
or Chief Executive) who had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO ("Dl Register”) were as follows:

R i
RATEHRMERESE - HerBHNAR
B HHRERMEES0 - BEEERWIE > #iE
BRERERBRESERD ~ 176 -~ 388
BV

REFENREFER  RIEFFEEEN
IR 1B B I 1 B E 19 7 674,084,57217 »
ERAFRAPSEITROAII0%

FB A B {0 3K & 1 28 2 & 5F

o bt B R 5B SN A E R A
FEMNEARE > FAF  HEFRERERA
A MEADRERMNE AT HES R
Az CEERRETHASRNRE
BB R MI8H T LI #BAT AR R
0] Lt 4 N B 8 2 B2 149 o0 7 42 38 T 6 R A

m °

Hfth AL h Bz (0 B AR R R 1 Z 1
B

MEFNEFHERSITHRASRMA > 722023
FIA30H U FALTHZE(BFREZEN R
STHRABMNKKRODNEBRDTES
AR A S E (P HE B L B ISR R 58 5 S A
EfRfIE386kAERF2ELHM(EmR
BEM) z2EmIKB ST

Long position in the Shares RRBRZEE
Number Approximate %
of Shares of issued
Capacity/Nature of interests interested voting Shares
e
FEED®N BRER
We B B HEHE B & B B 19 B 49 %
AY Capital Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation 2,879,521,438 4272
7 BB AT R KEREGEE Z# R (Note)
(Kt 3%)
CDM Trust Trustee of a private discretionary trust 2,879,521,438 4272
MARBEFEZRFEA (Note)
(b7 &)
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WhiE

Dr. Yeung Sau Shing
("Dr. Albert Yeung”)
BE B L (MEEL)

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon
NS

China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd.

TEEMREESERD
BIRAE

EMEEEEEERHER
N

China Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Limited
EEES (BB BRAF

Taiping Assets Management
(HK) Company Limited
AFTEEEER(FH)BRAF

Taiping Trustees Limited
AFERERAT

Note: These Shares were the same S

Capacity/Nature of interests

B fHmtE

Founder of a private discretionary trust

ABBEFEZRIILA

Interest of spouse
oz #m

Interest in a controlled corporation

RREGEZEZEm

Interest in a controlled corporation

REREGEZEZ Em

Investment Manager
BEEEA

Investment Manager
CEEE A

Trustee

=25 A

hares of which Ms. Daisy Yeung had

deemed interest as set out under the section of “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2023, the Directors
or Chief Executives were not aware of any person or corporation
(other than a Director or Chief Executive) who had, or were deemed

or taken to have, any interests or

short positions in any Shares or

underlying Shares as recorded in DI Register.
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Number
of Shares
interested

FAEEDR
(a0 g 4=

2,879,521,438
(Note)
(ft 32)

2,879,521,438
(Note)
(b7 t)

561,622,000

551,522,000

551,522,000

612,900,000

612,900,000

M et -

Approximate %
of issued
voting Shares

HE#T
CEEL
R 13 8 49 %

42.72

42.72

8.18

8.18

8.18

9.09

9.09

EROA EXTEERESTHRARZ

BERE I —HPAEBRFTLLIRES
BEREEmZAERRD -

Br £ IR B & Jh - 1120235 9H308 » &
ERNERSTHRABLAMEBEMALIX
B (FREENERSTHRABIN KEMRKRSD
HAERERDPEEAMRBSNEFEST
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 30 September 2023, none of the Directors or their respective
associates was interested in any business which was considered to
compete or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements, Contracts and Connected
Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
and a Director had material interests, directly or indirectly, in such
transactions:

Connected Transaction

1. Connected Transaction — Underwriting Agreement
Date: 29 June 2023

Parties: (1) Emperor Securities Limited (“ESL"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company

(2) New Media Lab Limited (“New Media
Lab”), which is indirectly controlled
by a private discretionary trust set up
by Dr. Albert Yeung

(3) Other public offer underwriters and
placing underwriters

Nature: ESL, one of the underwriters, entered into
an underwriting agreement with, among
others, New Media Lab in relation to
underwriting of the shares of New Media
Lab that offered for subscription by way of
a public offer in Hong Kong and placed to
certain professional, institutional and other
investors as stated in the prospectus of
New Media Lab dated 30 June 2023.

Connected The Company and New Media Lab were
relationship: indirectly controlled by respective private
discretionary trusts founded by Dr. Albert
Yeung who is the deemed substantial
Shareholder. As such, under Chapter
T4A of the Listing Rules, New Media Lab
was a deemed connected person of the
Company.

Announcement: 29 June 2023

ERENBRBETEZES
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Continuing Connected Transactions HEREXS
1. Continuing Connected Transactions — 2020 Master Leasing 1. FFABRIE S~ 20205F B B 17 %
Agreement (“2020 MLA”) (2020 4B B 1 5% 1)
Date: 3 December 2020 HER: 2020512 H3H
Parties: (1)  The Company SI8BE . (1) ARE
(2)  Emperor International (2 HmEEE
Term: From 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024 FHY BH2021%F481H £2024
F3H31H
Nature: The 2020 MLA sets out the framework ME: 2020F BT B s &L 7

of the terms governing all existing and
future tenancy/licensing transaction(s)
("“Tenancy Transaction(s)”) regarding
leasing of certain office properties or other
properties (including signage or signboard
space) from Emperor International and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as "Emperor International Group”) with
aggregate tenancy annual caps being
set for each of the six months ended
30 September 2021, the financial years
ended 30 September 2022 and 2023 and
the six months ending 31 March 2024.

Pursuant to the 2020 MLA, relevant
members of the Group and the relevant
members of Emperor International Group
may from time to time enter into any
definitive leasing agreement(s) in relation
to any Tenancy Transactions (“Definitive
Leasing Agreement(s)”). The terms of
each Definitive Leasing Agreement shall
be on normal commercial terms or on
terms which are no less favorable to the
Group than terms offered by independent
third parties. The terms and rental shall
be subject to arm’s length negotiation
and be determined based on the condition
of the properties and with reference
to the then prevailing market rents on
property(ies) comparable in location, area
and permitted use.

REBREZEE & HKH
BREI(MBAIRER
MER)HEETHA
EMEREMY X(E
EEEMEBM ZRE
RERKREE F#E
X (MAERZ)BIE
IR R > I wE & E2021
FIHIHLEARMEA ~ &
F 20224 & 2023%F9H30
HEFHRFEUALREE
2024F3H31HIE/RE B
BHB ORI L BES
FEER-

1R #2020 8 1 & %
ZoASEEMERME SR
REFHBEBRBRANE
AARRMERNEERS
SJUEMENBE R
TEXEERBZE) - BIE
N E W% 2 R E R
—REEERN LB
RBILS=AHKTEE
B 2 BRRRET L » R K
HEEERTEERE
WERBEZZEYENRR
N2EZEHFMEME -
HERFFARERZY*E
ERTHSESETE -
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Connected
relationship
and Director’s
interests:

Announcement:

Aggregate
amounts:

Remark:

P 26

As the Company and Emperor
International were both indirectly
controlled by the respective private
discretionary trusts founded by Dr.
Albert Yeung, Emperor International
was a deemed connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Ms. Daisy Yeung, a Director,
had deemed interest in the transactions
by virtue of being one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the relevant private
discretionary trust controlling Emperor
International.

3 December 2020

For the Year, the aggregate right-of-use
amount and rental expense amount paid
in respect of the Tenancy Transactions
with Emperor International Group (which
did not exceed the approved right-of-use
annual cap of HKS$33,945,000 and rental
expense annual cap of HKS$5,000,000
respectively for the Year) were as follows:

Right-of-use = HK$25,240,000
Rental Expense — HKS$15,000

With the upcoming expiration of the 2020
MLA, the Company entered into new
master leasing agreement with Emperor
International on 23 March 2023.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREB G R AT
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2. Financial Services Agreement with the Listed Members of
Emperor Group (“Emperor Group FSA”)

BEEEE LHERBTLZ & /MR
W3 ((EEER MR )

Date: 22 June 2021
Parties: (1) The Company
(2) Emperor International, Emperor
E Hotel, Emperor W&J, Emperor
Culture and Ulferts (collectively
“Listed Members of Emperor Group”)
Term: From 1 October 2021 to 30 September
2024
Nature: Under the Emperor Group FSA, the Group
has agreed to provide to the Listed
Members of Emperor Group (i) brokerage
services for securities, futures and options
trading; (i) wealth management and
asset management services; (i) placing
and underwriting services; (iv) financing
services including margin loans, IPO
loans and terms loans; and (v) financial
advisory service on normal commercial
terms with reference to the market price
no less favourable to the Group than those
available to independent third parties.
Connected Ms. Daisy Yeung had deemed interest in
relationship this agreement by virtue of being one of
and Director’s  the eligible beneficiaries of the respective
interests: private discretionary trusts controlling the
Listed Members of Emperor Group.
Announcement: 22 June 2021
Circular: 371 August 2021
Independent 27 September 2021
Shareholders’
approval:

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREE B[R AT
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Amount for
Aggregate Amount: Nature of transaction the Year
R XHEHE TEEZEEH

Remark:

(=

P 28

HKS'000
TETT

(@) Commission, brokerage and fees and interest income from
the Listed Members of Emperor Group
MESEE TR ERNZHE  KLENEBUAF
Bl A -

(b)  Maximum margin loan amount to the Listed Members of
Emperor Group*
MEZEE TR EBRHZARERESTHE" -

(c) Maximum IPO loan amount to the Listed Members of
Emperor Group*
MEEEE TR EBREZEA A HEEERREEE -

(d)  Maximum term loan amount to the Listed Members of
Emperor Group*
MEEEELLTRERHZEHERES SR -

(e) Financial advisory fee from the Listed Members of Emperor
Group
MESEBEETHERNRZEMAEHE 3,445

* The maximum amount granted during the Year

REFERENRSEEE

With the upcoming expiration of the Emperor Group FSA, the Company entered
into new financial services agreement with the Listed Members of Emperor Group
(including New Media Lab which has been a listed company since 17 July 2023) on
1 December 2023.

BHRAEERETHRGHRINSER > XA ENR2023F 128 HEEEERE L
mREB(EENELE > HE2023F78177HEM A LT AT 5T # 2 /AR % %

3
i °
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Financial Services Agreement with Ms. Daisy Yeung for the
Yeung Family (“Yeung FSA”)

Date:

Parties:

Term:

Nature:

Connected
relationship

and Director’s

interests:

Announcement:

Circular:

Independent

Shareholders’

approval:

22 June 2021

(1) The Company
(2) Ms. Daisy Yeung

From 1 October 2021 to 30 September
2024

Under the Yeung FSA, the Group has
agreed to provide to members of the
Yeung Family (i.e. Ms. Daisy Yeung and
her associates but excluding the Listed
Members of Emperor Group) (i) brokerage
services for securities, futures and
options trading; (i) wealth management
and asset management services; (iii)
financing services including margin
loans, IPO loans and term loans; and (iv)
financial advisory services. The Group
has also agreed to pay commission and
fee to the Yeung Family, including (1) the
commission and fee for their acting as
placees or underwriters for the securities
of the Company or for the securities
underwritten or placed by the Group; and
(2) referral fee for introducing clients to
the Group relating to the Group’s business.
The terms are on normal commercial
terms with reference to the market price
no less favourable to the Group than those
available to independent third parties.

Ms. Daisy Yeung had deemed interest in
this agreement by virtue of being one of
the members of the Yeung Family.

22 June 2021

31 August 2021

27 September 2021
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Aggregate Amount:

MEE

Remarks:

Bt

P 30

1.

Nature of transaction

XEHE

Commission, brokerage, fees and interest income from the

Yeung Family
AHEERBERRZEE  ELE - ERRFERA

Maximum margin loan amount to the Yeung Family*
AERERGEREZARERES TR

Maximum IPO loan amount to the Yeung Family*
HHERRGERHEZERAFAEEERRS TR

Maximum term loan amount to the Yeung Family*
MERERGRHEZEHERES L’

Financial advisory fee from the Yeung Family

M5 KRR KW Z &/ E

Commission and fee to the Yeung Family for their services

being provided to the Group
BERERAXEBRDNMEEHERBZHEERE R

The maximum amount granted during the Year

RAEFERHNRESER

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREB G R AT
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Amount for
the Year
rEEZEEE

HKS'000
TETT

3,258

30,597

1,190

With the upcoming expiration of the Yeung FSA, the Company entered into new financial services agreement
with Ms. Daisy Yeung on 1 December 2023.

BB ERERMBBHENFER > AREEHR2023F 128 1HEBRSFT L LT UF EMRBIHE -

The above aggregate amounts did not exceed the approved annual caps under the Emperor Group FSA and
the Yeung FSA respectively as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 June 2021.
LR EREBAANEHRR2021FOALHASHHEX A ELESMBBHENRBRESMRE
HEEBETZHEFE LR -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREGHRS

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Regarding the related party transactions as set out in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements, the transactions as shown
in items i, iii to iv, viii and ix are non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (“CCTs”) of the Company and the Company has
complied with the relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. All other transactions as shown in the
said note are connected transactions exempted from all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Independent Auditor’s Letter on Non-exempt CCTs

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on
the non-exempt CCTs of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The independent auditor issued an unqualified conclusions in
respect of the non-exempt CCTs of the Group as set out from pages
25 to 30 of this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive
Directors on Non-exempt CCTs

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs had
reviewed the non-exempt CCTs and the Auditor's Letter and
confirmed that these transactions had been entered into by the
Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(iiiy according to the respective agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract which was significant in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREE B[R AT
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Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link of
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current market best practice). Remuneration should be
paid with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
the salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the executive and non-executive Directors, internal
equity of employment conditions across the Group and applicability
of performance-based remuneration. The Directors’ fees are paid
fees in line with market practice. No individual should determine his/
her own remuneration.

Employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay levels. Remuneration package
includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees,
housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes, discretionary
bonus relating to financial performance of the Group and individual
performance, ad hoc rewards, share options and other competitive
fringe benefits such as medical and life insurances. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company's issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Independent Auditor

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible,
offer itself for re-appointment at the 2024 AGM. A resolution for
its re-appointment as independent auditor of the Company will be
proposed thereat.

On behalf of the Board

Daisy Yeung
Chairperson

Hong Kong
19 December 2023
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for the Company so as to ensure “Accountability,
Responsibility and Transparency” towards Shareholders, investors,
employees as well as other stakeholders of the Company.

The Directors have adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules so as to having
effective application of the principles of good corporate governance.
During the Year, the Company complied with the code provisions of
the CG Code except with the deviation from code provision C.2.1
which requires the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and not be performed by the same individual,
details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “Chairperson
and Chief Executive Officer”.

Corporate Culture and Strategy

The Company is committed to cultivating a corporate culture,
focusing on four pillars, namely customer centricity, excellence
in products and services, people first and positivity, which is
underpinned by its purpose and values that enable employees at all
levels of the Group to thrive and meet their full potentials by acting
in a lawful, ethical and responsible manner that allows the Company
to deliver sustainable long-term performance and operate in a way
that benefits society and the environment.

The Company’s purpose and values serve as a guide for employees’
conduct and behaviours, ensuring that they are integrated
throughout the Company’s operational practices, workplace policies
and practices and stakeholder relationships:
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The management is responsible for setting the tone and shaping the
corporate culture of the Company, as well as defining the purpose,
values and strategic direction of the Group, which are under review
by the Board. Taking into account the corporate culture is reflected
in various contexts, such as workforce engagement, employee
retention and training, legal and regulatory compliance, staff safety,
wellbeing and support, the culture, purpose, values and strategy of
the Group are aligned with one another.

The Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for the
leadership, control and promotion of the success of the Group in
the interests of the Shareholders by directing and supervising its
affairs and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the
financial and management performance of the Group.

Board Composition and Diversity

The Board currently comprises six Directors, with three Executive
Directors and three INEDs. Names and other biographical details
of the members of the Board are set out on pages 14 to 16 of
this annual report under the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” section. All of them possess the skills, experience and
expertise either in the same industry or relevant to the management
of the business of the Group.

To ensure independent views and input are available to the Board,
the following mechanisms were established:

sufficient number of INEDs in a total of three, representing
more than one-third of the Board;

no INED has served the Board for more than 9 years; and

annual meeting between the Chairperson and all INEDs
without presence of other Directors provides an effective
platform for the Chairperson to listen to independent views on
various issues concerning the Group.

During the Year, the Board reviewed the implementation of these
mechanisms and determined that they remain effective.
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The Company also adopted the Board Diversity Policy setting out
the approach to achieve a diverse Board with a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives to the business nature of
the Company. In designing the Board’'s composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a wide range of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service, and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant
and applicable from time to time. The merits and contribution that
will bring to the Board for any Director proposed for re-election or
any candidate nominated to be Director will also be assessed, taking
into account the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.

The current Board composition reflects a diverse mix of educational
background, professional knowledge, industry experience and length
of service. The diversity mix of the Board as at 30 September 2023
is summarized as follows:

(i) Board Composition, Gender Distribution, Age Distribution
and Length of Service

Number of Directors

ESAH

Gender

L) 51

Designation
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(ii) Directors’ Skills and Experience

(i) EFREREE

Areas of Experience AR A

Number of Share of
Directors the Board

EEME GEFETLA

Related Industry Knowledge/Experience GEEES R Y 4 67%
Business Management HER=PL 3 50%
Legal/Regulatory EREE 2 33%
Financial & Accounting R 75 g 5t 4 67%
Strategic Planning & Risk Management BN B AR SR 6 100%

The Board’s gender diversity level is relatively high compared
to other companies listed on the Stock Exchange, with
three female directors out of six (50%). During the VYear,
the Nomination Committee recommended and the Board
approved a target of having no less than 25% female
directors on the Board. The Nomination Committee was of
the view that the current gender diversity of the Board was
appropriate, balanced and exceeding the target set. Therefore,
no timeline or plan was proposed for further enhancing
the gender diversity target of the Board for the time being.
The Nomination Committee will continue reviewing the
composition of the Board to maintain diversity.

As at 30 September 2023, our total workforce comprised
of 45% female and 55% male, whereas senior management
comprised of 44% female and 56% male. The current gender
diversity of workforce was appropriate taking into account the
business models and operational needs.

The term of appointment of the INEDs is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election provisions under the Bye-laws of
the Company and the Listing Rules. The INEDs had provided
their confirmation of independence to the Company. Based on
the annual review conducted by the Nomination Committee,
the Board considered each of them to be independent with
reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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Board Process

Besides regular Board meetings are held during the Year, additional
Board meetings, or meetings of Board committees established
by the Board to consider specific matters, were convened, when

necessary.

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is set

out below:

Name of Directors

Exftn

Executive Directors

Board

Exg

Audit
Committee
BY
£88

EERER

=
i °

e

BEEFNAEFELHRES

No. of meetings attended/held

&ﬁ nﬁ gﬁanﬁ ﬁ
Nomination
Committee
R4
£88

Remuneration
Committee
)|

Z8%

Corporate

Governance
Committee

&

Executive
Committee
E4 -] BT

8¢ £8¢

CBHESFS S5

B AEERTHTHESTREN > M
BE > RSB
AESBCEAMRUNEEESES Y

ENEFT

ZzIBRESMm

General
Meeting

REAE

BirEs

Ms. Daisy Yeung 6/6 (C) - - 2/2 - 9/9 (C) n
BRFZE

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Note 7) 6/6 - 1N - - 8/8 n

BSBREML)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 2) 6/6 - - - -0 8/8 n
BB L2

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (Mote 3) n - - - 11(C) 33 -
AWML+ (W23

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTES

Ms. Wan Choi Ha 6/6 3/3 - 2/2 (C) n - n
BAYEYL

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary 6/6 3/3 11 (C) 2/2 - - n
BERLE

Mr. Yu King Tin (Note 4) 4/4 2/2 (C) - - - - -
REXREE (Wite)

Mr. Poon Yan Wai (Note 5) 2/2 11 (C) 1N n - n
BLRRE MY

Total number of meeting(s) held: 6 3 1 2 1 9 1
STEEZBH
C: Chairperson/Chairman of the Board/Committee C.BEHg LEGIRE
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Notes:

1. Mr. Wong Chi Fai was appointed as Director, member of the Executive
Committee and the Remuneration Committee on 1 December 2022.

2. Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa was appointed as Director and member of
the Executive Committee on 1 December 2022, and as Chairperson of
the Corporate Governance Committee on 1 January 2023.

3. Ms. Choi Suk Hing retired as Director on 1 January 2023 and
automatically ceased to act as the Chairperson of the Corporate
Governance Committee and member of the Executive Committee on the
same day.

4. Mr. Yu King Tin was elected as Director at the 2023 AGM and was
appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee
on the same day.

5. Mr. Poon Yan Wai retired as Director at the 2023 AGM and automatically
ceased to act as the Chairman of the Audit Committee, member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee on
the same day.

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs without
the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with code
provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Company has received confirmation from each Director that
he/she has given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company during the Year. Directors have also disclosed to the
Company the changes, if any, in the number and nature of offices
they held in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitment, including the identity of the public companies or
organizations and an indication of the time involved.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to code provision C.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Ms. Daisy Yeung serves as the Chairperson
of the Board as well as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.
Ms. Daisy Yeung has extensive management experience in financial
industry. The Board considers that the combination of the roles of
Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer can promote the efficient
formulation and implementation of the Company’s strategies to
grasp business opportunities efficiently and effectively. The Board
believes that the balance of power and authority of the Board
is adequately ensured by the current Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals, with half of them being
INEDs, and the independent mechanism.
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Board Proceedings

Ms. Daisy Yeung sets the agenda for the Board and ensures
that members of the Board receive accurate, timely and clear
information, and that matters to be taken into consideration are
given their due weight, so that sound decisions can be made. With
the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson ensures
that the Board properly exercises its powers, holds its meetings
and implements procedures in compliance with all rules and
requirements, and full and proper records are maintained.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than
a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting on the
relevant Board resolution and he/she shall not be counted in the
quorum present at the Board meeting.

Procedures are also put in place for each Director to have access
to supporting papers and relevant information for each scheduled
meeting. All Directors also have access to the services of the
Company Secretary and her team, and may take independent
professional advice upon request, at the Company’s expense.

Induction and Training for Directors

The Company provides Directors with regular updates on changes
to and developments of the Group’s business, and on the latest
developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to Directors’
duties and responsibilities to help them make informed decisions
and discharge their duties and responsibilities as Directors. Such
materials will also be provided to newly appointed Directors shortly
upon their appointment as Directors.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREE B[R AT
Annual Report 2022 / 2023 F#k

ESERERF
BRSJTULEIAEFEFERRE  BRES
ERERSER BREKBEHMNEN I
BREEENEEHSINEEER » UEF
HEAERE - EREAMENHE T > £HE
BREFTRRABRUNBEBSTHE
HEN - BOERNERER > LR7FST
BNBERLE -

EENESFEEFERTERZIEFETF
EEFERRBERZMaER > AIZFE
BRUEREFSERESZMIIEUZTER
FESINRE MZESHMEBRESS
REEMERE > BAEFALEZES
TERIEENER -

ERBTERABEENESERESTRERS
WX REAENEZYIER - 2RESF
TMEEERSRAMELEERNHE > UKk
ARHERSRBUEIXENER  BHE
FRHBEA QT AE -

EE AR RIS
ANFAEREEEREANAEE LSS

PRERNBHEN > UREMEERE
REMNEE  RAREANRFER
LB B R Z RIS R E R B TR AE
ENBBERET o AADTHHH EoE
ERSEAEEATANARSERMRS
B o

39 {4



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERERS

During the Year, each Director participated in continuous WHAFE > SEEBEBSMUTEENSE
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/ F& Mg FHEERNSHFESES
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh B UEBEBRMEHRHMMBANEE > ®#ED
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to the A ZARA TR 1ZI50 8% :

Company:

Name of Directors Topics on training covered
Exnsa 1 3N PRy R 2 Y E

Ms. Daisy Yeung (1)  corporate governance
BT L TXRER

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (appointed on 1 December 2022) (2) finance

EE KB (2022125 1HE Z 1T) & ®h

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (appointed on 1 December 2022)  (3) Industry specific
SeRNE L (5520224125 1H #E Z (F) 1T R AR

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (retired on 1 January 2023) (4) regulatory

MM &+ (352023F 15 1H B 1F) BE

Ms. Wan Choi Ha
BRELT

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary
HERLE

Mr. Yu King Tin (appointed on 28 February 2023)
RER I (F5202342528H # Z (F)

Mr. Poon Yan Wai (retired on 28 February 2023)
BRI E (5520232528 H B (F)
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Board Committees
To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate effective
management, certain functions of the Board have been delegated
by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee.

Clear written terms of reference of all the Board Committees are
given to the respective members of these Committees.

1.  Executive Committee (set up on 18 November 2014)
The Executive Committee consists of all the Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Daisy Yeung (Chairperson of the
Committee), Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man Seung,
Vanessa. It has all powers and authorities of the Board except
the following major matters as set out in a “Formal Schedule
on matters reserved for and delegated by the Board”:

determining the Group's objectives and strategies;

approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;

declaring or recommending payment of dividends or
other distributions;

approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

approving publication of announcements for notifiable
transactions (except for discloseable transactions in
relation to lease transactions recognizing the right-of-
use asset according to HKFRS 16 “Leases”) under the
Listing Rules;

approving non-exempt connected transactions/non-
exempt continuing connected transactions (other than
those transactions took place from time to time under
the master agreement(s) previously approved by the
Board/Shareholders (as the case may be)) under the
Listing Rules; and

approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company.
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2. Audit Committee (set up on 1 March 2007)
The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Yu
King Tin (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Wan Choi Ha and
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set
out in its terms of reference which include duties specified
in the CG Code and are posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel and/
or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit process
and the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, and the accuracy and fairness of the annual
consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 30 September 2022 (“Previous Year”) and the
interim consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 31 March 2023;

i reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group during the Previous
Year;

iii.  performed annual review of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Previous
Year;

iv.  recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
independent auditor at the 2023 AGM;

v.  reviewed the audit fees and the fees for non-audit
services payable to the independent auditor;

vi. approved the audit plan for the Year, reviewed the
independence of independent auditor and approved its
engagement;

vii.  reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions as well as those relating to the
Company’s environmental, social and governance (“ESG”")
performance and reporting; and

viii. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
adoption of new anti-corruption policy and procedures
and the revised whistle-blowing policy and reporting
procedures for the Company.
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Remuneration Committee (set up on 1 March 2007)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary (Chairman of the Committee)
and Mr. Yu King Tin, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi Fai,
being an Executive Director.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are set out in its terms of reference which include duties
specified in the CG Code and are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Directors’ fee and made recommendation
to the Board for approval;

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their specific
packages;

iii.  reviewed the remuneration package of newly appointed
Chairperson of the Board and made recommendation to
the Board for approval; and

iv.  reviewed the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee and made recommendation to the Board for
approval.

Before recommendation to the Board, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and assessed the remuneration
package of the Directors with reference to the Group’s
operating results, duties and level of responsibility of the
Directors and the prevailing market conditions. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set out
in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Wan Choi Ha (Chairperson of the Committee) and
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy
Yeung, being an Executive Director.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
are set out in its terms of reference which include duties
specified in the CG Code and are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
policy and making recommendations to the Board on
nomination, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, and
Board succession pursuant to the Nomination Policy adopted
by the Company.

FWEEE (352007438 1H R 1Z)
FNZETH=ZMEMER &
ERAEE(FEGTE)NFEXREE
(BAEBIUENTES) NESELE
(BITESE) -

FNEEENTEAGRBAE N
HEaEE  HPRSEExE1aTh
STERREE - W EE BASHI AP A
NE) AU o

HNEEERNEFERNMEBEITZIMF
MEEHIWT:

BMNEFET THEFTIR
U HALE

i. BERATERASREEEZ
REFWNRE B TME
FEREHERITZEE MM
/A

i. BRMEEEFTGIHEZHM
BB THOEFFREEZZEN
Mg &

iv. ZBRFNEZESZHERE T
MESZREOEZUMME -

AREERIREREN  FHEES
GEEFEENEELE - EEH
EREEATLURBTRR B R
TGEEENFHGE A EESE
ENFWAEEREESUBRRM
11 0

L EEE (F20124E3528 A fE 1Z)
REEZECTH-_LMEMHEMN BA
¥FEXL(ZESXTRE) NEEBPLEE
(BAEBYIERTES) MEHFT T
(MITESE) o

REULZEENTEABNBEHRK
HE®gE  HPeEexEaTh
SRRV S - W EE BASE AP A
NE UL o

RHZEGEEFIERR @ WRER
NERMBRERBR > siiRH ~ &1F
NENEXTEEUNEETGTHIS
BERNEFERMHER -

Emperor Capital Group Limited ZZEE2EAXEEER AT 43
Annual Report 2022 / 2023 F#k



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERERS

The Nomination Policy aims at assisting the Nomination
Committee in identifying and nominating suitable candidates
for directorship based on the Board Diversity Policy and sets
out the nomination criteria and the nomination procedures
for (i) nominating new Director to fill a casual vacancy on
the Board; (i) making recommendation to Directors and
Shareholders regarding any Director proposed for election
or re-election at general meeting; and (iii) nomination by
Shareholders on election of new Director.

The Nomination Committee may identify potential candidates
from any source as it may consider appropriate and
evaluate them by considering various factors, including their
professional expertise, industry and business experience,
time commitments, potential contributions to board diversity,
material conflict of interest with the Group (if any) and
independence (for INEDs). The Committee will then make
recommendation for suitable candidates to the Board for
consideration of appointment. In case of reappointment of
existing Directors who will retire at an annual general meeting
("AGM"), the Committee will review the rotation and retirement
of Directors and make recommendations to the Board
accordingly.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board;

ii. reviewed the Board Diversity Policy;
iii.  reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

iv.  reviewed Directors’ time commitment in performing their
duties as Directors;

V. made recommendation to the Board on nomination of
Ms. Daisy Yeung as Chairperson of the Board;

vi. made recommendation to the Board on the re-election
of Directors at the 2023 AGM;

vii. made recommendation to the Board on nomination of
Mr. Yu King Tin as new Director to fill the causal vacancy
created by the retirement of Mr. Poon Yan Wai at the
2023 AGM; and

viii. made recommendation to the Board on the gender
diversity target at Board level.
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Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March
2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of five
members, namely Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson
of the Committee), being an Executive Director, Ms. Wan Choi
Ha and Mr. Yu King Tin, both being an INEDs, a representative
from company secretarial function and a representative from
finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the Corporate
Governance Committee is available on the Company’s website.
The primary duties of the Corporate Governance Committee
are (a) developing and reviewing the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Company (“CG Policy”)
and making recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (c)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the codes of conduct
applicable to Directors and relevant employees of the Group
regarding dealings in the Company’s securities; (d) reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and (e)
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation to
the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the said codes of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group regarding
securities transactions; and

V. reviewed the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.
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Company Secretary

During the Year, the Company Secretary, being an employee of
the Company, duly complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by
taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Securities Transactions of Directors

The Company has adopted the ECG Securities Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors
on no less exacting terms than the required standard as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. Having made
specific enquiry to Directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the
ECG Securities Code throughout the Year.

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare annual
consolidated financial statements of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules. The management has
provided all members of the Board with monthly updates on internal
financial statements which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the
Board had adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgment and estimates that were prudent
and reasonable and ensured the consolidated financial statements
were prepared on a “going concern” basis (with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary) and showed a true view
of the state of affairs of the Group for the Year. The management
had provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board
on the consolidated financial statements to enable it to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before it for approval. The independent auditor of the Company
had made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and day-
to-day running of a business and it assists a company in achieving
its business objectives. Internal control policies and procedures
within the Group are updated regularly with the primary objective
of providing general guidance and recommendations on a basic
framework of risk management and internal control systems
(“Control Systems”).
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A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal control
measures and procedures covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls; and (ii) risk
management functions in its principal subsidiaries of the Company
for the Year.

A. Goals and Objectives
The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective Control Systems.
Such Control Systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include:
safeguarding assets;

ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of financial
records and reports;

promoting adherence to policies, procedures, regulations
and laws; and

promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations.

B. Internal Control
(1) Governance Control
The control structure of the Control Systems is set out
as follows:

The Board
responsible for the overall Control Systems and
reviewing their effectiveness;

oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing basis
with the assistance of the Audit Committee;

ensure the maintenance of appropriate and
effective Control Systems;

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limits of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of significant
risks (including ESG risks) that the Group is willing
to take in achieving the strategic objectives and
formulate the Group’s risk management strategies.

RAFE > ARBEMUTRBETE
NI AEBEsAISEERBENER B
%Fﬁﬁ%k%%  BIEMBE S EBNRER

M) ERBEFENBLARZEARE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁb °

A. REREE
%%ﬁ%§ﬁ1%$$lux4& HEHE
EENEBER 2EERGT  BRABERE
%%ﬁf%?—k EMmIEERRBEE N X
BERE R > W ER B EKERE
MHBRIEHSEMIFEBHRSE o

EERGECTEERERE:
REEE,

BRYBCHENEBRSZTEM
ey N

REETHR EF > BH K

A R
(R E WS REE -

B. AEPESHE

(1) EEER
B AS T B REEHINT
-
. AEEBELZLLES
EHARL

BRESSBENREBYENE
?I%QI\/L' 5

REBRBEEENERSL
EERE M

BEXEELERBEE
IRFAREAE 2 EXRER (B
BIRE - HEREBER)
ZHERREE » LHIER
EEZEREERE -

Emperor Capital Group Limited ZZEE2EAXEEER AT 47
Annual Report 2022 / 2023 F#k



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERERS

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems with
the management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to maintain
effective Control Systems. This discussion
also includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit, financial reporting function and of those
relating to the Company’s ESG performance and
reporting;

review the nature and extent of significant risks
(including ESG risks), and the Group’s ability to
respond to changes in its business and the external
environment;

consider major findings on internal control matters
(if any) raised by internal and external auditors and
make recommendations to the Board; and

review and discuss annually with significant control
failings or weaknesses that are identified by the
auditors.

Executive Committee

review the effectiveness of ESG-related risk
management and internal control systems and
report to the Audit Committee for its review.

The management (includes heads of business units,
departments and divisions)

P 48

design and implement the Control Systems’ policies and
procedures duly endorsed by senior management
and the Board;

monitor the Control Systems properly and ensure
the Control Systems are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks
in their day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Control Systems.
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Internal Audit Department

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control
Systems in respect of all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance
controls;

alert the management on the audit review
findings or irregularities and advise them on the
implementation of necessary steps and actions to
enhance the internal controls of the Group; and

report the results of internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans to the Audit Committee and
the Board on a regular basis.

Operational Controls

The management is responsible for analysing the control
environment, identifying risks pertaining thereto, and
implementing various controls therein as follows:

Approach taken: The management communicates
with relevant staff members, reviews relevant
documentation of the Control Systems and
evaluates findings of any deficiencies in the design
of the Group’s Control Systems, then provides
recommendations for improvement and assesses
the effectiveness of implementation of such
recommendations, where appropriate. The scope
and findings of the review on the Control Systems
will be reported to the Audit Committee annually;

Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts the management promptly of any
deviations. Benchmarking with historical database
and comparisons with the same also acts as a
detecting device for spotting unusual activities;

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines:
To safeguard the assets against unauthorized
use or disposition and ensure maintenance of
proper accounting records that are in compliance
with the applicable laws, rules and regulations for
the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use and/or external publication;
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Management information system and technology:
To control over the business activities, it allows
close tracking of various inputs and outputs of
the Group’s business such as human resources,
product offerings, lending portfolio and customer
information. It also tracks audit trails in the
authorization system, under which permissions and
responsibility of authorization are clearly identified
and adequate records can be maintained in the
Control Systems; and

Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each operating segment in the
upstream, midstream and downstream are
conducted on a regular basis such that the
performance of each operating segment can be
easily accessible.

(3) Financial Controls

P 50

proper controls are in place for the recording of
complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

annual budget and quarterly forecast on all capital
and revenue items are prepared and approved by
the management before being adopted;

the management monitors the business activities
closely and reviews monthly financial results of
operations against budgets/forecast;

regular reports on revenue, trade receivables’ ageing
and debtors’ ageing and internal financial reports
are prepared to the management which give a
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's financial performance;

monthly updates on internal financial statements
are provided to all Directors which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group's
performance, financial position and prospects in
sufficient details;
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Vi.

Vii.

annual audit by external auditor is carried out to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements
are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies
and the applicable laws and regulations; and

daily available fund report is reviewed to monitor
the cash flows against budgets/forecast.

Compliance Controls
The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of an
internal work team (if required), that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate, for the
attention of the Board. The Board shall make timely
decisions on disclosure, if necessary and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality of
inside information until proper dissemination of the
inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which shall
be reviewed and monitored regularly by the
Corporate Governance Committee as delegated
by the Board in order to ensure the Group is in
compliance with all the applicable laws, statutes,
rules and regulations; and to keep up on any legal
developments;

Continuing Connected Transaction Compliance
Committee is established to monitor, control
and regularly review connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions of the Group
and ensure proper compliance with all relevant laws
and regulations, the Listing Rules and disclosure
requirements;

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREE B[R AT
Annual Report 2022 / 2023 F#k

“)

Vi.

Vil

SNESRL BB EIT FEE X
LEREEGHHBRRIDR
BARERA s AEEH
ZESBRABRZER
KNOEBRRE K

&
5|

ZERSAMB/HE
oMU BEERE
B/ E

Zo

iy
EEN

7

B Sl 45

EREE
TIHREEFDBRESGR

B

AEHESHRERIRE
F o UERBI AN
BTFTTE) BEREM
—RHUEZLBRAERTD
BRI EREF AT NE
s Al BT Al 1R A (1
BEEFE  -EFZTEE
By i 4% B2 1F R E (U0 &R
) W HREVE B 1 R A
BEHERE EEREH
fRBBEERL;

EREBTEEREERTE
ZHREEREHESS
ZRkZEXEBREZEGE
AR hER > BRAE
EETREERER A
Mo R AR A - q BB
ERERERE

RERERNEXSER
ZEGUER BEXE
PR AsEEZHERS
REsERERS  LHER
e —IREBERN
AR LRI NRIRER

IE 5

51 {4



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERERS

iv.  Whistle-blowing policy is established to provide
reporting channels and guidance for employees
and related third parties who have business
dealings with the Group (e.g. customers and
suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence and
anonymity, about any suspected misconduct
or malpractice within the Company. The Audit
Committee, delegated by the Board, shall ensure
that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of any concerns raised,
appropriate follow up actions are taken and other
recommendations are provided, if thinks fit;

V. Anti-corruption policy is established to outline the
Group's zero-tolerance stance against bribery and
corruption and assists employees in recognising
circumstances that may lead to or give the
appearance of being involved in corruption or
unethical business conduct, so as to avoid such
conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to promptly
seek guidance where necessary or report any
reasonably suspected case of corruption or any
attempts thereof, to the management through an
appropriate reporting channel; and

vi.  Anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist
financing policy and procedure is established
to set out the general framework for combating
crime against money laundering and financing of
terrorism. It provides guideline to combat money
laundering and terrorist and help the Group’s
employees identify and assess clients/customers/
suppliers/vendors/contractors/transactions/
activities of high risk of money laundering, terrorist
financing or other financial crime and take
appropriate measures and actions.

Review of Internal Controls

Effectiveness of internal controls is tested by Internal Audit
Department regularly. Internal audit reviews and agreed action
plans should be reported to the Audit Committee and the
Board on timely basis.
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C. Risk Management

(1)

Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks are
evaluated by the Board and the management based on
(i) the severity of the impact of the risks on the Group’s
financial results; (i) the probability and frequency that the
risks will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which
risks could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Group will manage the
risks as follows:

Risk elimination — The management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

Risk mitigation — The management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed to reduce
the likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to an
acceptable level or contingency plan for possible
loss scenarios.

Risk control and monitoring — It involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable and
how to address those that are not. Accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be
investigated and properly documented as part of
the effort to manage risks.

Risk retention — The management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required and the
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the risk
management program to ensure the level of risk
does not increase to an unacceptable level.
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(2) Significant Risks and Strategies
Certain significant risks have been identified through the
process of risk identification and assessments. Such
significant risks of the Group and their respective key
levels and key control measures are set out below:

(i) Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the borrower or
counterparty may fail to perform its obligation to
pay in a timely manner, or that its ability to perform
such obligation may get impaired before delivery
date.

The Group's Credit Committee, the ultimate credit
decision-making organ of the Group, is responsible
for putting in place credit policies and procedures
for approving margin financing and lending
portfolio as well as debt recovery procedures
to ensure prompt and effective recovery of
outstanding debts. The Credit Committee meets
both regularly and timely to review the development
and status of past due accounts and to ensure
appropriate actions are taken in a timely manner.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk lies mainly in
two areas:

a)  Margin financing

The customers’ trading of securities or
futures may expose the Group to risk arising
from price volatility which may reduce the
customers’ ability to meet their obligations.
The Credit Committee will prescribe from
time to time the lending limits on individual
stock or on any individual customer and
their respective associates by considering
their creditworthiness, financial strength and
the size of their positions or commitments
for the purpose of monitoring the customer
concentration risk and stock concentration
risk.
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The Credit and Risk Control Department
("CRC Department”) is responsible for the
daily monitoring of the changes in customers’
positions, their accounts and financing
ratios; to observe strictly the approved
financing and credit policies; to make margin
calls and perform forced liquidation, where
appropriate; to report to the management
promptly and when abnormalities arise; to
closely monitor the unusual movements and
trading halts of stocks and timely identify
non-performing debts; and to demand higher
margin requirements and step up risk control
for particular customers or products, where
appropriate.

The Group has set up policies on customer
concentration risk and stock concentration
risk. The CRC Department will monitor the
concentration of credit risk and regularly
perform stress tests to assess the Group's
credit risk exposure and capital adequacy
and to report anomaly or any unusual price
movements of customers’ stock positions.
As at 30 September 2023, the receivable
balances due from the largest client and five
largest clients represented 13.2% and 37.9%
of the total receivables from margin financing
respectively.

Lending portfolio

All loans and advances are subject to
credit analysis, borrower’s due diligence,
risk assessment and are approved by the
management according to the credit policies
set by the Credit Committee. The Loans
Operation Department is tasked with the
daily monitoring of exposures for loans and
advances. As at 30 September 2023, the
loans receivables due from the largest client
and five largest clients represented 3.2%
and 13.1% of the total loans and advances
respectively.
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(i)

(i)

P 56

Moreover, the Internal Audit Department
also conducts independent reviews on the
adequacy and effectiveness of these policies
and controls to ensure that the Group is
operating according to the established
policies, procedures and credit limits.

Equity Risk

Equity risk arises from fluctuation in the price
and volatility of equities such as stocks, equity
portfolio and stock index futures. The Group does
not have proprietary equity investments. On the
other hand, the Group may be subject to exposure
arising from the underwriting commitments. The
Group mitigates its risks by conducting detailed
analysis of the issuer’s fundamentals and pricing
against market conditions and appetites. Such risk
exposure is also reduced by way of internal sales
and distribution and by sub-underwritings.

Liquidity Risk

The Group'’s financing business is a capital intensive
business which may be subject to liquidity risk.
As part of its ordinary brokerage activities, the
Group is also exposed to liquidity risk arising
from timing difference between settlement with
clearing houses or brokers and customers. The
goal of liquidity risk management is to ensure the
Group maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its
business commitments as well as to comply with
the relevant Financial Resources Rules applying to
various licensed subsidiaries.

To address the liquidity risk, the Group’s Finance
and Accounts Department and the management
will review and monitor the Group’s liquidity position
on daily basis to ensure availability of sufficient
liquid funds. In addition, the Group has maintained
sufficient stand-by banking and other facilities
in order to meet any financial obligations in its
operations. The management believes the Group’s
working capital is adequate to meet its financial
obligations.
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(iv)

3

(V)

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people,
systems or external events. The Group extends
operational risk management to cover potential
losses arising from legal and compliance breaches.
Operational risk is reduced and controlled through
establishing effective internal controls, clear lines
of responsibility, proper segregation of duties
and effective internal reporting and contingency
planning. It is our corporate culture that the
business and operating line management are fully
aware of their responsibilities for managing the
operational risks of their business units on a day-
to-day basis. Independent monitoring and reviews
are conducted by the Compliance Department
and the Internal Audit Department, which report
regularly to the management and the Audit
Committee.

Others Risks

Change of social, economic and political environment,
occurrence of any natural disaster or outbreak of
contagious diseases such as COVID-19 pandemic,
could adversely affect the Group’s business and
operations. The Group stays alert to the changes in
economic and market condition and adjust business
strategic plans to cope with these changes. The
Group also implements business continuity plans
which include “Work from Home", “Flexible Working
Hours” and “Split-team Arrangements”; and ensures
all safety measures as required by the Hong Kong
SAR Government are fully implemented.

Due Diligence Review Performed by the Group in
relation to Margin Financing, and Other Loans and
Advances

For all financial assistance transactions, responsible
personnel of the Group have taken reasonable steps
verifying the identity of the applicants and guarantors
through examination of identity documents such as
identity cards, passports and address proofs. Clients’
occupation, business, financial standing and credit
history of the client with the Group were also considered.

Notwithstanding the standard procedures above, the
Group performed various due diligence exercises
according to different natures of financial assistance.
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For mortgage loans, the Group engaged no less than MEBERMES ) AEEES
two independent property valuers to appraise the value RTINS T8 L ) 2 fh E B
of pledged properties. Land records were obtained from EERYEETHE T&EE
Land Registry in order to ascertain the registered owner B L ith 5 R AN L #hEC %
of the property and incumbrances registered against it. MEEMENECEBAUR
MEBLHNEEEE -

For margin financing business, the Group analysed MIFRMEZEHBMS > m&H
the relevant underlying securities in accordance with BEREFLNELER X3
price histories, trading performances, trading prospects XR - -RZEENER DA
and fundamentals of the collateral. The Group also RIIZHNEES o BLEMmEBSFmME
considered public financial information in the case XEETEZRAANAUMBE
of listed securities. The margin clients were required EleoeffRERBEAFE S I
to deposit their securities, and undertook to maintain A AEERTE—TERFA
certain position with the Group and personal guarantees WEABERA BZBER&A
provided by ultimate beneficial owners were required EnEEARHBAER R
in case of corporate borrowers. The Group had daily ENEH AEESHEEZE L
monitoring of the share and financial performances of MR R HBRIR

the listed companies for default events.

For term loans, in the event that the clients deposited MEBEMMS » WMEFEEA
and undertook to maintain securities under the Group's FH UL AEHEIEBERES
custody, the Group performed the same due diligence BrAEESETHITRME
works as margin financing business. The clients XBHERNERAETILE R
may also be required to provide the Group with other BARBETHNRNESTMG
securities when the needs arise based on latest credit AEEERERIJEEXRRR
assessment conducted from time to time. MAEEEHRAEMES o
The Credit Committee also takes into consideration EEZEGNELTEHEHES
existing or forecast adverse changes in business, BERANBITHEREEEE
financial, or economic conditions that are expected to NEFBEESCNER - B
cause a significant change in the borrower’s ability FRBEARTHRBBER KRR Z
to meet its debt obligation; potential changes in the AH&E; ERABTHERSE
borrower’s ability to meet its debt obligation; external ENENTNETEL, BB E
market credit risk indicators for collaterals with similar LR ER RIS DHEEES
characteristics; and significant changes in the value REHERE, MR FHBEANE
of the collateral supporting the obligation or credit EEGNIEFAREENEESE
enhancement. Lastly, on-premise and face-to-face fte B ERIBEMHE
verification is required before entering agreement relating Bz el BETRSMNE Y
to provision of financial assistance. HERE o
D. Management Confirmation D. EIEEHE:R

The Board acknowledged that it had received a confirmation EEgRIECEEEEENAERE

from the management on the effectiveness of the Control RAFEZBEERGZ MBI ©

Systems of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee and ERZEENESFERNRAGER

the Board, upon reviewing the Control Systems, were not M FBEAEEAEEREZR

aware of any significant issues that would have an adverse MEEE MBERERAEZ R R

impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's TEMEEFTFEEZERERT

operational, financial and compliance areas of the Control

Systems.
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Dividend Policy

The Company had adopted a dividend policy setting out the
principles for the Board to determine appropriate amount of dividend
to be distributed to the Shareholders. The Company intends to
provide Shareholders with regular interim and final dividends (as the
case may be) based on the earnings attributable to its Shareholders
after taking into consideration of the factors as stated in the
policy, including inter alia, (i) cash flow requirements for business
operations; (i) cash available, financial liabilities and capital
commitment; (iii) market environment and challenges; and (iv)
future development and investment opportunities. The declaration
of dividends or recommendation on such payment shall be subject
to all applicable laws, rules and regulations including but not limited
to the Listing Rules, the applicable laws of Bermuda and the Bye-
laws of the Company.

Communication With Shareholders

The Company’s Shareholders’ Communication Policy (available on
the website of the Company) sets out the strategies, practices and
commitment for maintaining ongoing and effective communication
with Shareholders, both individual and institutional, and in
appropriate circumstances, the investment community at large
so as to enable them to engage with the Company and exercise
their rights as shareholders in an informed manner. To this end,
the Company strives to ensure that all Shareholders have ready
and timely access to all publicly available information of the
Group. To facilitate communication with Shareholders and the
investment community, the Company has established various
communication channels, as follows: (i) the holding of AGMs
and special general meetings (“SGM(s)”), if any, which may be
convened for specific purposes which provide opportunities to
the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (ii) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/
or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press releases
providing updated information of the Group; (iii) the availability
of latest information of the Group on the Company’s website
at https://www.EmperorCapital.com; (iv) the holding of press
conference(s) from time to time; and (v) meeting with investors and
analysts on a regular basis and participating in investor road show
and sector conference.

Regular dialogue with institutional Shareholder and general
presentations are made when financial results are announced.
Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s
website to raise enquiries through our Investor Relations
Department whose contact details are available on the Company’s
website and the “Corporate Information and Key Dates” section of
this annual report.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
substantially separate issues, including re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for AGM is sent to
Shareholders at least 21 clear days before the meeting and notices
of other general meetings are sent to Shareholders at least 14
clear days before the meetings. The Chairperson of the Board and
the chairperson/members of the Board Committees, appropriate
management executives and the independent auditor are available
to attend the general meetings to answer questions from the
Shareholders. With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the
Chairperson of the meeting explains the procedures for conducting
a poll voting during the meeting.

The Company shall review the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy annually to ensure its implementation and effectiveness.
Having considered the multiple channels of communication and
engagement in place, the Board is satisfied that the Shareholders’
Communication Policy has been properly in place during the Year
and remains effective.

Shareholders’ Rights
Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code:

Right to Convene/Call a General Meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and the Bye-laws
of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall have the right to submit a written requisition
requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition
(i) must state the purpose(s) of the meeting, and (i) must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong for attention of the Company Secretary, and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified with the Company’s
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified
as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the SGM will not be convened as requested.
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If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a day not
more than 2 months after the date of deposit of a proper requisition,
the requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights of all of them may themselves convene a SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. In addition,
such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
are to be convened by the Board.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at general meetings of the Company
("Requisitionist”), or not less than 100 of such Shareholders, can
request the Company in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to
have notice of any general meeting any statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The
requisition signed by all the Requisitionists must be deposited at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses
and not less than 6 weeks before the meeting in the case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than T week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided
that an AGM is called for a date 6 weeks or less after the requisition
has been deposited, such requisition though not deposited within
the time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited
for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s
website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’'s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar. Other
Shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations
Department of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERERS

Constitutional Documents

For the purpose of (i) conforming with the latest Listing Rules and
the applicable laws of Bermuda; (i) providing the flexibility to the
Company in relation to the conduct of general meetings (including
allowing the general meetings to be held as a hybrid meeting or an
electronic meeting in addition to a physical meeting); and (iii) making
other consequential and housekeeping amendments, the Company
adopted a new bye-laws (“New Bye-laws”) during the Year. The
adoption of the New Bye-laws was approved by the Shareholders at
2023 AGM. The New Bye-laws is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

Auditor’s Independence and Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu is independent and had recommended the Board
to propose its re-appointment as the Company’s independent
auditor at the 2024 AGM. During the Year, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu had rendered audit services and non-audit services to the
Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is set
out as follows:

#H SRR
HOMELTRANBREBREZHINR
MhRA; (VB AERBERTRERERIE
HEZRE(BEGFERIRIN  FFRE
RELREEEANEBEFERZAANET) X
(i) fFH H AR R N FEEST » RAB A
FEESHRMFM LM (AR -
FRERFL2023F RERBF R G Lt E R
REHR o Fr AT AR E R PR AR
UL R ER -

Y% B Em 2 35 3L 1 K B &
ERZETERERBERZENERK
EERHME BN URREZGE M
BRERBEZFHERERE - EZES
THERR BE-HERD G5EITE
BIALT TEREFSFHERES
RER024FRRBAFAGEBESER
BIZBUZEBE - NAFERN > 2
EHRTD G AT B AR B IR HAABRE
KEZBRE > MAKERHEEN, B
FzME&HWT:

Fees paid/
Services rendered payable
FR 42 14 B9 BR %5 et EitER
HKS'000
TAT
Audit services 2,715
Z AR
Non-audit services:
FFRZHART
— Agreed-upon procedures for continuing connected transactions 60
-HEBRAERZRITHERRF
— Review of preliminary results announcement 60

- BRI ERERS

P 62

Annual Report 2022 / 2023 &R

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREB G R AT



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B\ B RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMPEROR CAPITAL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Emperor
Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 175, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30
September 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREE B[R AT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
]I B RS

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

FREFEE

MREEEEGE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRZEBMAEERREN S

Impairment of loans and advances and accounts receivable from secured margin clients (collectively referred

to as the “advances to customers”) at Stage 3

KEZBRZEGRBAREREERFRELIRS (G EHRELRH)HE

We identified the impairment of advances to
customers at stage 3 as a key audit matter due to the
involvement of significant management judgement.
BRMRRE="BEZATFBREAEED A —ERH
BESTEE WHHARIREREIEE A E

In determining the lifetime expected credit loss ("ECL")
on advances to customers classified at stage 3,
the Group performs the assessment based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusting
for factors that are specific to the borrowers, general
economic conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions with significant
judgement involved. The Group also reviews the fair
value of the collateral received from the borrowers
in determining the amount of ECL. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating both the amount
and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly
to reduce any differences between estimated ECL
amounts and actual loss experience.
NREEDEAE=TENRAERBRNEHEHRE
EREN E5EERE E£EENBEIEEHE
REETTE TERBERANEEERR ~ KRS
HEAR BB EER RN RRARRTBRETHE » B
RS RERAE o EEBTRETCHEBEEEE
THEEERNEWERANIRRRATE  E5tRK
REe BN RERBMAN G EREBRSRREE 5
BR UERBGEREERETHREEREGE
BRI ER o
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
advances to customers at stage 3 included:
EMRERENE=ZBENRZERBIRENTHIE
FEiE:

- Understanding the Group's established credit
risk policies and procedures for impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 including approval
and selection and application of assumptions
and key inputs;

- TR EEENEGEERRBRBERENMEEUE
REERFIRETHRENLERF  BES
HEBEENERARS NARE ABIE;

- Understanding the key controls over ongoing
monitoring processes, including:

- THEBEERBENIEERRE 21!

(i)  the process of margin call procedures
for margin shortfall and actions taken
by management for those accounts
receivable from margin clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities with
margin call; and

) FRRFEIAERHETHEVRRIZEZEFX
EEENMKREESFEEXHBHRBEEMR
BEZERRIFRERERAAKERITEHN
(e

(i) the process of periodic reviews for
identification of any indications of
deterioration of the creditability of
borrowers through searching of publicly
available information and any delinquency
in principal or interest repayment for
advances to customers;

(i) MEAEFRBREBRSARASENE
EERAEBEBREXEAAETIHF
BRERNIRZCHERERF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

MBESHEEE)

@EFEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

BRAZEAMAEREMREATEE)

Impairment of loans and advances and accounts receivable from secured margin clients (collectively referred
to as the “advances to customers”) at Stage 3 (continued)

KEZBRZEGRBAREREEAFREFIRS (GHEA RHERRH)HE E)

As set out in notes 21, 22, and 38 to the consolidated
financial statements, the total gross carrying amounts
of (i) loans and advances and (ii) accounts receivable
from secured margin clients as at 30 September 2023
amounted to HKS$2,772,999,000 and HK$2,006,820,000
respectively, of which HK$1,232,221,000 and
HKS$1,939,553,000 respectively are classified at stage 3.
UGS T FE|RRME21 ~ 22 %38P & > 752023
FORH () E R KB M & (i) &K E |ERHF
BEFKRAXEKB®RED A %22772999,000% 7t
%22,006,820,000% st > H H11,232,221,000% 7T &
1,939,553,000B T 0 R DR E =B °

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREE B[R AT

Assessing the reasonableness and appropriateness of
the management’s judgement on staging criteria for
determining if the significant increase in credit risk has
occurred (stage 1 or 2) or the financial asset is credit-
impaired (stage 3) and the basis for classification
of exposures into the 3 stages as required by
HKFRS 9 and examining supporting information on
a sample basis to assess the appropriateness of
the classification of exposures as at the end of the
reporting period;
AMEEEEHEETROHREERRBELN(E
—NE_RBBR)AEMEETSEEERE (=R
B R R I R R B B RS ER FOKAAR
TR ERE D EA=ERERNEEMIEHENGIE
MREEN > URMEZERAERLGHENERS
HARNERDENREN;

Corroborating and challenging management’s assessment
and key estimations used in determining expectation
of reasonably possible outcomes on the recoverability
of the advances to customers against our
understanding of the situation and the industries of
the borrowers or guarantor and collateral, if any, from
reading public announcements and other externally
available information;
MEMBEEERASREMINIAIEERHERA
S R A DU 3R m (I08) WIE R R PTEE 1T R BB
B RENEREEEETMHLRAZTRRRNG
B0 A A RFEEAPT A BV T A R RA B {51

Examining underlying documentation supporting the
management’s key estimations used in determining
the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, including the historical repayment records and
expected repayment subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, fair value of the collateral, if any,
and other information available on the creditability of
those borrowers;
REXHEEEETHARRBEEREREMA
RS ST ROAERE X > BB 48 RRAC ik X 3R & 1A
RENFEIER - B7 @ (NE) AFEURMZ
EERACGENEAMAIEER;

65 £¢@

Annual Report 2022 / 2023 F#k



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Key Audit Matters (continued) DE R E G

Key audit matter (continued)

PREFEEGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

BRZEMAEERREAETERE(A)

Impairment of loans and advances and accounts receivable from secured margin clients (collectively referred
to as the “advances to customers”) at Stage 3 (continued)

KEZBRZEGRBAREREERFRELIRS (GEH RELRH)HE E)

As at 30 September 2023, impairment allowances of
HKS695,416,000 and HKS$1,634,577,000 have been
provided in relation to (i) loans and advances and
(i) accounts receivable from secured margin clients
classified at stage 3, respectively, as disclosed in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

AR & B PSR R MY 5E38FT IR BB 0 12023494
B BN EAE=BRETHOERKER
R)EWRBIRF|IFRERRAGIRBAEEE D H
695,416,0007% 7t X 1,634,577,000%8 7T °

Reviewing the fair value of collateral together with
our internal valuation specialists, where appropriate,
including:
BEMANABLEERZERTGNLTEWE
A 8iE:

Obtaining the appraisal reports and assessing
the competence and independence of the
third-party professional valuers and their
experience in conducting valuation of similar
assets;

EEF RS 4 E =5 F X EE
HENRBIMUNBEEAREBUEEE
ITHENLR;

Assessing whether the selection of the
valuation methodology is appropriate for the
collateral; and

IR RIEENGELEREEE
N

Evaluating the appropriateness of key inputs
used in the valuation of the collateral by
independently checking to the external data
and publicly available information.

BEB BB INBEBE R AKOIFER
LR mEEMMARARE A BB

Bt

Testing the accuracy and completeness of key
data sources applied in the ECL computation on a
sample basis by checking to the Group's supporting
information, the relevant loan files and external data
source, as applicable.

BBzt E SEEMEERER RN B RR (N
BERNERER  mEAARAREBREEERE
STENRMBEBRRNERY RTEMY -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREE B[R AT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolldated Financial Statements (continued)
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Cheuk Hoi Ho.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

19 December 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FERmkEMEERER

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & Z£2023F9830H IEFE

NOTES
B 5F
Revenue WA
Commission and fee income HERERKA 6 77,357
Interest income A E WA 6 363,689
441,046
Other income and gains or losses HW A Wz 3 518 7 9,249
Impairment allowances on financial TMEEZAERERE
assets, net of reversal 1 Bx # [ 8 (403,638)
Impairment allowance on right-of-use £ FR#E & E Z B E
assets B 18 (15,753)
Staff costs BT A& 9 (71,982)
Commission and fee expenses BEhFEELZH (30,848)
Other expenses Hith = 13 (73,998)
Finance costs MBEER 10 (14,871)
Loss before tax bR 10 B &S 18 13 (160,795)
Income tax credit (expense) R (Bs2) 14 157
Loss for the year attributable to EREEEAEWN
owners of the Company FEEE (160,638)
Other comprehensive expense Hith2 EH %
ltem that may be reclassified HEBOEEFDEE
subsequently to profit or loss: EBmzIEE:
Exchange differences arising on MBBINETSTE %
translation of foreign operations ZEREER (158)
Total comprehensive expense for the AT HEE AELEE
year attributable to owners of S HERFZAREE
the Company (160,796)
Loss per share SRR
Basic 2PN HK(2.38) cents

15 &1l
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2022
HKS'000
TETT

85,459
427,365

512,824
5,408

(590,095)

(72.912)
(36,488)
(82,473)
(26,845)

(290,587)
(8,653)

(299,234)

(67)

(299,301)

HK(4.44) cents
AL




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HEMBRAR

At 30 September 2023 /52023295 30H

NOTES
it 5
Non-current assets JERBEE
Property and equipment EINEE-] 17
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18
Intangible assets BLEE 19
Other assets Hth&EE 20
Loans and advances B KB 21
Deferred tax assets RLEIRIEE E 26
Current assets mEEE
Accounts receivable & WA BR =X 22
Loans and advances BERXBR 21
Other debtors, deposits and HUMEWERR &
prepayments K FE RIE
Tax recoverable B] [B] Y iR 18
Pledged bank deposits — BIRFIETER— 23
general accounts —fRER P
Bank balances and cash - RITHERRIRE— 24
general accounts —RER P
Bank balances and cash — IRITH R IR & — 24
segregated accounts Bk A

2023
HK$°000
FER

6,498
5,753

7,695
461,219
590

481,755

511,917
1,615,488

12,511
3,447

160,000

1,002,263

1,406,891

4,712,517
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2022
HKS'000
THETT

6,893
1,670

5,189
686,871
590

701,213

691,807
1,669,893

14,361
15,004

160,000

860,796

1,573,074

4,984,935
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HEaMBRKAR

At 30 September 2023 /52023295 30H

2023 2022
NOTES HK$’000 HKS'000
hg= T#x FA T
Current liabilities pk =R
Accounts payable FE T BR X 25 1,537,710 1,653,186
Other creditors and accrued charges Hh (I IR et
&H 33,137 32,575
Tax liabilities MIE&E 1,804 12,260
Lease liabilities HEaed 27 9,320 6,464
Short-term bank borrowings RHARITER 28 210,000 430,000
1,791,971 2,134,485
Net current assets MENEEEE 2,920,546 2,850,450
Total assets less current liabilities MEERRBER 3,402,301 3,551,663
Non-current liabilities ERB AR
Lease liabilities HEaedE 27 12,756 1,322
Net assets BEERE 3,389,545 3,550,341
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital % 2 29 67,408 67,408
Reserves & 3,322,137 3,482,933
Total equity R4 3,389,545 3,550,341

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 175 were EE & /12023F12 8190 #E /& K& B # T E
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 $70Z F1758B 2 &£ HFHREKX > T AHT

December 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: NEERAREZTGTEE.
WONG CHI FAI FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA
BEEE EEYE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
o £
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEREmZEHR
For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9H30H I FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATEAAELS
Capital
Share Share Special  contribution  Translation REEED]
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
2 B {0 i (8 Hh B BAR BEGE REBEF Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TERT
At 1 October 2021 52021410818 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (70) 571,061 3,849,642
Loss for the year EEFE - - - - - (299,234) (299,234)
Other comprehensive FEEMEZAMAS
expense for the year - - - - (67) - (67)
At 30 September 2022 £202249A30H 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (137) 271,827 3,550,341
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (160,638) (160,638)
Other comprehensive FEHMZERS
expense for the year - - - - (158) - (158)
At 30 September 2023 1£2023F9A30H 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (295) 111,189 3,389,545

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value 4Rl EBIE AN —BHRB AT B ETE
of the ordinary shares of a subsidiary of the Company in issue @R ZEELKRATRIEHF2007F482H
and the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company for ZEBEEHWE —RHHRBASMETZRR
acquisition of a subsidiary pursuant to a group reorganisation on 2 2 EHEB Z E=%E °

April 2007,

Capital contribution reserve represents the deemed contribution BARMAGHEIERNREBETEES TEEE
arising from a fellow subsidiary waiving certain amount of EBEEMH—ERZNBATEEHAZ
management fee in previous years. RIE ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SARERER

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & Z£2023F9830H IEFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Depreciation of property and equipment
Depreciation for right-of-use assets

Loss on disposal of an associate

Impairment allowances on financial
assets, net of reversal

Impairment allowance on right-of-use
assets

Gain on early termination of a lease

REES
PR B RS 18

B

MHER

B WA
MENREZITE
EREEEZINE

HE-—RBMEQRTZ

1R

TRMEEZRMERER
1 B 8 o]

ERAREEZRERR

RERIEAEZ T

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in other assets

Decrease (increase) in loans and advances

Decrease (increase) in other debtors,
deposits and prepayments

Decrease in bank balances and
cash — segregated accounts

Decrease in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in other creditors
and accrued charges

Rene

FE U BR Rz (38 hn)
Hih& &z (B 0) B
ERKRBRZBD

(1% 00)

/)

/}

2

9\

HMtBUWERR ~ &

FA RIEZ R D ()

RITHEBRNMRRE-BI

REZED
AR ZmD

L1t 4 B 30 P Bt B P
2 #70 G D)

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund (paid)
PRC Tax paid

Interest paid

Interest received

REEEZRE
BRI EBFNER
B RERIEA

BENHME
2B

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

REREFHZ2REEFN
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2023
HK$'000
FER

(160,795)

14,871

(363,689)
3,827
4,692

403,638

15,753
(18)

(81,721)
(26,244)
(2,506)

107,330
1,850

166,183
(115,476)

404

49,820
1,275

(17)

(14,295)
338,912

375,695

2022
HKS'000
TETT

(290,581)

26,845

(427,365)
3,105
10,877

111

590,095

(86,913)
835,356
4,937

(546,825)
(5,254)

261,524
(340,276)

(18,104)

104,445
(24,439)
(19)
(11,306)

402,649

471,330




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A, =
CAERERE
For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023F9830H IEFEE
2023 2022
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
F#ET FHETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Purchase of property and equipment BEMENKE (7,692)
Proceeds on disposal of an associate HE—RBBZERABZME
18 3,527
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING B EReEmzRE R
ACTIVITIES (3,432) (4,165)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REFEH
Drawdown on bank borrowings IREVIETTER 3,210,000 5,360,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITENR (3,430,000) (5,300,000)
Redemption of bonds issued BOEETES = (500,000)
Interest paid on bonds issued BEETESZENHE - (19,038)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEARA (10,796) (11,393)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING BimEEFeszREFEHE
ACTIVITIES (230,796) (470,431)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RERREEEWZEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R %) 3 %8 141,467 (3,266)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FMZRAERREZEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 860,796 864,062
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZEASHREASZEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 1,002,263 860,796
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF RERREEEMZ2ET
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS bR
Bank balances and cash — general IRITHEERNIRE —
accounts —MRER B 1,002,263 860,796

Disclosure in relation to the changes in liabilities arising from BREREEZFFFEENEEEHWER
financing activities are detailed in note 32 to the consolidated #4z & BA #5 ¥R & MY sE320P ¥ 4t o
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

1.

GENERAL

Emperor Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
and registered as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). The
immediate holding company is Emperor Capital Group Holdings
Limited which is a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"). The ultimate holding company
is Albert Yeung Capital Holdings Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in the BVI. The entire issued share
capital of Albert Yeung Capital Holdings Limited is in turn held
by CDM Trust & Board Services AG, being the trustee of Albert
Yeung Capital Discretionary Trust, a discretionary trust set up
by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert.

Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 24 April 2007. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
34.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HKS"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREB G R AT

» 76 Annual Report 2022 / 2023 & #k

— R EH
REEAEEBRAB(EARET
RIEAREIGIELTE (KE:]) =+
MM ELAEREBRAR - &H
BERRDAREEAEEZEZRE
[RRE) MEBEZEESEMMKILZ
BRRE - RERERABDABIHN
BERZERERLE  RNEBRLEE
EMMIIZBRAE c BT EARE
REBRRBZ2HMEETRAAEEG
ST RE TR — B SE T Albert
Yeung Capital Discretionary Trust 25
£ ACDM Trust & Board Services AG
BB

RNF 2 K1 B2007F 482482
TEBBMARSMBERAE (TR
PRI EMR ET o ZRAB MM ER K
TEEXRMB MU WERELR R
BEMKEZAMI —H -

ERBRREERRNE - ZREFEE
MEBABZ TEXRFBH RN EI4 -

HEMBREDUBTOEBT) 2
P HIMBARB ZINEER ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 October 2022 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond

30 June 2021

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018 — 2020

Amendment to HKAS 37

Amendment to HKFRSs

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREE B[R AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

2.

P 78

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 21

Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)’

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?®

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies'

Supplier Finance Arrangements?®

Definition of Accounting
Estimates!

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'

Lack of Exchangeability*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in

the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
transfer of the entity’'s own equity instruments, these
terms do not affect its classification as current or non-
current only if the entity recognises the option separately
as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that the classification should not
be affected by management intentions or expectations
to settle the liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months
from reporting date which are conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with which
an entity is required to comply with on or before the end of the
reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
Covenants which are required to comply with only after the
reporting period do not affect whether that right exists at the
end of the reporting period.

8 5 1EL 143 o A 3 2 BT AT R 42
EIEBMBHRESENE)
BEHECHEREIFZIETEREE
Vg YA EETA DY S F L
F555 (20205) Z E R 1EET (120204
1EETE)REEGAEREIHZIE
FTEMERZENIF B EE (12022
FEMEETZE)

2020 1B 5] A & ST (415 45 B PR 1E
EEREABEERY T _EANER
RMEBBENREIINES kBB E
BZRERIERE B

BEEHERRREEGR > AJH
HFHhEEEEEEERLS
WEm TRETEE > AIEES
BEREREB T ERFE325%
TR A 2R EZREFME
BmEm TRE  ZSFHERT
FTEHEDERARBNIERD
EHEE -

SREERERREMRER
RUREFIM D B RETIERE o
BREME 25 BT RBEZD
BAREERBENREARLE
BENEBNEMAEE -

HRUBTERERKHENBERSH
HEEDER+—ERBGEERER
2020F B ST A 5| A BV ZE K E #2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
47 G B 35 3R R M 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”) (continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could
become repayable within twelve months after the reporting
period, if the entity classify liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right to defer
settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting
period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of
applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments,
together with the 2020 Amendments, are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with
early application permitted. If an entity applies the 2020
amendments for an earlier period after the issue of the
2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the 2022
Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group's outstanding liabilities as at 30 September
2023, including bank borrowings, and the related terms and
conditions stipulated in the agreements between the Group and
the relevant lenders, the application of the amendments will not
result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16 “Leases”, measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liabilities relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, such as
sponsoring service fee and performance fee from asset
management services, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount, which better predicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in
the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable
that such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.

Description of the Group’s performance obligation of main
source of income under the scope of HKFRS 15 are as follows:

Brokerage

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities, futures and options contracts. Commission income
is recognised at a point in time on the execution date of
the trades at a certain percentage of the transaction value
of the trades executed. The Group provides custodian and
handling services for securities, futures and options customer
accounts. Fee income is recognised when the transaction is
executed and service is completed (i.e. at a point in time),
except for custodian service fee which is recognised over time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Corporate finance

The Group provides placing, underwriting or sub-underwriting
services to customers for their fund raising activities in equity
and debt capital markets. Revenue is recognised when the
relevant placing, underwriting, sub-underwriting services are
completed. Accordingly, the revenue is recognised at a point
in time.

The Group also provides sponsoring services to clients
for their fund raising activities and corporate advisory
services to corporate clients for their corporate actions.
The Group considers that all the services promised in a
particular contract of being a sponsor or corporate advisor
are interdependent and interrelated and should be therefore
accounted for as a single performance obligation. As
there is enforceable right to payment for the Group for the
performance of services completed up to date based on the
contracts with customers regarding sponsor or corporate
advisory services, the revenue is recognised over time based
on the stage of completion of the contract, the services
transferred to customers up to date.

Wealth management

The Group provides wealth management services to
customers. The customers simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefit provided by the Group, hence the
revenue is recognised as a performance obligation satisfied
over time. Wealth management fee income is charged at
a fixed percentage per month of the net asset value of the
managed accounts under management of the Group.

The Group is also entitled to a performance fee when the
performance meets certain levels in accordance with Private
Placement Memorandum for the relevant performance period
and it is recognised at the end of the relevant performance
period, when it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
and are accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

the lease term has changed, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date
of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

BEXREEERA

E* é-l-ﬂ% (/IE

HE (&)
KEEFEHZEBNA(B)
HE&E#E)
REKBERE HEERE
BERBENMRIELFE -

BB ANF

AEERTHBERENMFEREER
(LA RMEREEEFAERAR):

ZEHERE > FIIBERT

*HEWH BREREMFEEAH
DUREE BT R IR R AR IR S 5T M
ﬁmﬁ'ﬁ%%ﬁ.ﬁrz °

HENRREETTHHEEEERN
rhBEEEEMURES
RUEERT  HEEAE&ERE N
MR R R EESTEHEN
MMEHETE -

AEBRGEEUH R IRAKEE
BRI BEHRER -

HEEXR
HHBREUTER » AEESFEEEXN
R —REBENEEETARK:

ZBEEBEBBMER -8R
ZIEBBEEENEANERNEES
#BE &

A ERNAE B8
HERBEBRAHENBIE
B MERBRBEGHNER
BRHBLERETHNEIMAE

B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less
any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)

Share options granted to directors and employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payments
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payments reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Employment benefit

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
where appropriate, based on approved formulas that take
into consideration the profit attributable to the Group after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employment benefit (continued)

All other short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised for benefits
accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries, and
annual leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of
the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Such grants
are recognised as other income and presented under “other
income and gains or losses”.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs, that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or
proposed to be use by individual group entities in their income
tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred taxes are
determined consistently with the tax treatment in the income
tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of
each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely
amount or the expected value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment losses on property and equipment and right-of-
use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property and equipment and right-of-
use assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property and equipment and right-
of-use assets are estimated individually, when it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment losses on property and equipment and right-of-
use assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading and is not contingent consideration of an acquirer in
a business combination) in other comprehensive income with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period (with the amortised
cost being the gross carrying amount less the impairment
allowance). If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets including
other debtors and deposits, loans and advances, accounts
receivable, pledged bank deposits and bank balances which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable that result from transactions within the scope
of HKFRS 15 and the ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with debtors having
similar credit ratings.

For all other instruments, the Group applies the general
approach to measure ECL for all financial assets, if any, which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. On this basis, the
Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREB G R AT

. 100 Annual Report 2022 / 2023 & #k

SOMBRRZGREER
ERGHBRGE)
EAGHBERGE)
EMIAE)

2B E (&)

SMEERE

AEEMREEEMBRSERER
SHAGREZ R EE (BIEEME
WERR BT ~ ERNBN - BUCR
o BEMRITERURIRITELR)
ZHRBEERR(RREEHRENE
TRESG - EHEEBEERER
BMESEHBER > LURBRE ¥ 15 HE 2
BREERBRNEL -

EHRRGEEERERBIAEKRE
HEHRNFBERENENSESHRE
EZAHEERE -k 12BRE
HEEER(M2EREMEERRE))
AR RS A RI2E B RAT &
BRENENESHERNENOZHE
HEEBRE FEDREAEEYN
BEEEEERERET  LREES
BABAEHREERE - —REBR RN
NS BB E B0 B9 5T 14 A K
HARKAMAR TR L AR -

AEE-—ESeRBFTBMBREERS
155% 88 B W 32 7 P EE £ B PR UBR RRB9
AP EERRETES I g
HHBEEREREBANEE@RE
THEBEERETGR NHHA
ERLUGEEFRNEBAEABREY
EEETEEEREEBENMG -

HRFBEEMTIA  *EESHRA—
MUENDEZRSAEMBETREEDN
RHREEERWR L AREES
MR EEREORETRE - U
AERIBRT  ZEBEGLUI2MEAR
FHEEBEERGFEBEER K
FFEERESER 58 ER KRR
me EWERT > AEBESEDEH
RHEERBRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information, if
applicable, that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due (except for
accounts receivable from secured margin clients where
a shorter period of “past due” has been applied by the
directors in view of the nature of business operation
and practice in managing the credit risk), unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise. Information that will be taken
into account when assessing significant increase in
credit risk are also set out in note 38.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
the event of default occurs when the information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

In respective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default are based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

Past-due status;

Nature, size, background and industry of debtors;
and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of accounts
receivable from secured margin clients and loans
and advances where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

In assessing the ECL for financial assets, the Group
performs the assessment based on the Group'’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors specific to the
borrowers and the current conditions at the reporting date
as well as the forecast of future conditions. The Group
also reviews the value of collateral received from the
customers in measuring impairment. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating the impairment
amount are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other creditors
and short-term bank borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

The application of ECL Model

The directors of the Company estimate the amount of loss
allowance for ECL on financial assets at amortised cost
based on the credit risk of the respective financial instrument.
The loss allowance amount is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows with the consideration of expected
future credit loss of the respective financial instrument. The
assessment of the credit risk and expected cash flows of
the respective financial instrument involves a high degree of
estimation and uncertainty. The provision of ECL is sensitive
to changes in estimates. The estimates would include the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral value
when determining impairment allowances. When the actual
future cash flows are less than expected or more than
expected, a material impairment loss or a material reversal of
impairment loss may arise, accordingly. The information about
the ECL on financial assets at amortised cost are disclosed
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Risk Management Department is responsible for
developing and maintaining the processes for measuring ECL
including monitoring of credit risk, incorporation of forward-
looking information and the method used to measure ECL, and
ensuring that the Group has policies and procedures in place
to appropriately maintain and validate models used to assess
and measure ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

The application of ECL Model (continued)

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group employs experts who use external and internal
information to generate scenarios of future forecasts of
relevant economic variables. The internal and external
information used includes the historical data of the Group
and economic data and forecasts published by governmental
bodies, monetary authorities or other financial institutions.
Accordingly, when measuring ECL, the Group selects and
uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking information
without undue cost or effort in its assessment, which is based
on assumptions and estimates for the future movement of
different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect
each other as well as the correlation between historical default
rate and macro-economic factors. Management estimates
these forward-looking economic factors, such as GDP growth,
unemployment rate, interest rate and inflation etc. under
different scenario and analyse the impact on probability of
default (“PD") and loss given default (“LGD") for different
financial assets.

Measurement of ECL

PD constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. PD is an
estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon
and the calculation is based on reasonable and appropriate
statistical rating models selected by the management. These
statistical models are based on market data (where available),
as well as internal data comprising both quantitative and
qualitative factors, if applicable, which includes historical
data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. The
management gathers this information and adjusts the data to
reflect probability-weighted forward looking information that is
reasonable and supportable and available without undue cost
or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

The application of ECL Model (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking
into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit
enhancements with estimation involved. The LGD models for
secured assets consider forecasts of future collateral valuation
taking into account sale discounts, transaction volume of the
secured assets and seniority of claim. For unsecured loans,
the calculation of LGD includes the judgments in determining
the proportion of loan recovered after default and the duration
of recovery.

In assessing the lifetime ECL on credit-impaired financial
assets classified as stage 3, the Group performs the
assessment based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors or borrowers, which include any (i) significant
financial difficulty of the debtors or borrowers, (ii) the status
and progress of financial restructuring, general economic
conditions and both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions with
significant judgments involved. Moreover, the Group also
reviews and assesses the fair value of the collateral received
from the customers in determining the impairment.

Relevant information with regard to the exposure of credit
risk and expected credit losses are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment of property and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset; and (3) the appropriate key inputs to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the assets belongs including allocation of corporate assets
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established. Changing the inputs and estimates including the
discount rates or the growth rates in the cash flow projections
could materially affect the recoverable amounts of the various
cash-generating units.

As at 30 September 2023, in view of impairment indicators,
the Group performed impairment assessment on property and
equipment and right-of-use assets of carrying amounts (before
impairment allowance) of HKS6,498,000 (2022: HKS6,893,000)
and HKS$21,506,000 (2022: HKS7,247,000) respectively.
Impairment losses of HKSNil (2022: HK$2,833,000) and
HKS$15,753,000 (2022: HKS$5,577,000) have been recognised
on property and equipment and right-of-use assets as at 30
September 2023, respectively. Details of the impairment of
property and equipment and right-of-use assets are disclosed
in notes 17 and 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Income taxes

As at 30 September 2023, tax losses of HKS$3,400,371,000
(2022: HKS3,209,370,000) have not been recognised as deferred
tax asset due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In case where the actual future taxable
profits generated are more than expected, or change in facts
and circumstances which result in revision of future taxable
profits estimation, a material recognition of deferred tax asset
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a recognition takes place.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see above), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Significant increase in credit risk in measurement of ECL

As explained in note 3, the Group monitors all financial assets
that are subject to impairment requirements to assess whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk,
the Company will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime
rather than 12m ECL. Certain loans and advances and accounts
receivable from margin clients are measured on lifetime ECL
basis as for those credit risk had increased significantly since
initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes
a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased, the Group
takes into account qualitative and quantitative information,
if applicable, that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Information that will be
taken into account when assessing significant increase in credit
risk are also set out in “Impairment of financial assets” in notes
3 and 38.
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52023498308 » BRI EFIHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Determination of consolidation scope of certain pledged
securities in money lending

The Group entered into secured loan arrangements with
customers that contain several covenants such that the Group
may have the voting rights on certain relevant activities of
the pledged company and/or seize and enforce the pledged
company if a covenant is breached. When these protective
rights become exercisable and/or the Group seizes and
enforces the pledged companies, there is a change in facts
and circumstances and the control assessment is required to
be performed.

All facts and circumstances must be taken into consideration
in the assessment of whether these rights are substantive
and whether the Group, as lender, has practical ability to
exercise these rights as power to direct the relevant activities
of the pledged company. The principle of control sets out the
following three elements of control: (a) power over the pledged
company; (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
involvement with the pledged company; and (c) the ability to
use power over the pledged company to affect the amount of
the lender’s returns.

In conducting the assessment to determine this consolidation
scope, the directors of the Company considers whether the
rights held by the Group are substantive and whether are there
any barriers (economic or otherwise) that prevent or deter
the Group from exercising its rights based on all facts and
circumstances. The management assessed and determined
that there are financial disincentives and/or legal or regulatory
requirements that prevent or deter the Group from exercising
its rights based on all facts and circumstances for all relevant
cases of pledged companies in current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers, for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of services provided.

According to HKFRS 8, the Group has the following operating
and reportable segments:

(a) Financing —  Provision of margin financing and
money lending services

(b)  Brokerage — Provision of securities, options,
services futures, insurance, other assets
and wealth management
products broking services and
related handling services

() Placing and —  Provision of placing and
underwriting underwriting services

(d)  Corporate —  Provision of corporate finance
finance advisory services

Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by operating and reportable segments:

For the year ended 30 September 2023

Brokerage

7 & & #

SRAADNTEE (FELE RS
N USBEERRFEDBRR A
KT ERR AR ERBZ AR o

BEEBYHBREERFEST » &&
EEUTKEENRTZ®RDEL:

(@ B - REFERENR
BRR
(b) #&42 - RtESH 5
AR 75 7 HE ~ REE
HMWEENKME
BEELZEL
IR & HEREF &
AR 7%
(c EEEH - RERSHEGHER
d) - R EREE
=] R AR 75
DEBUL A R EE4E
UTAREBZIMARERRKS
M2 D EZ D
B E2023F9830HILLEFEE

Placing and  Corporate

Financing services underwriting finance  Elimination

R BERH

HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER

REVENUE N

Segment revenue — external NEBPA-SHBER
customers
Commission and fee income BERERBRA = 57,610
Interest income HMEKA 323,071 40,618
Inter-segment sales NHEHEE 310,323 =

633,394 98,228

EEREHE &XHE ff 58
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FER FER FER

77,357
363,689
(310,323) -

13,275 (310,323) 441,046

Emperor Capital Group Limited ZZEE2EAXEEER AT 113
Annual Report 2022 / 2023 F#k



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & Z£2023F9830H IEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.
Segment revenue and results (continued)
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Brokerage
Financing services

'™ SRR

DWER (B)
SER A R 24 (%)

DEEHEERIBITHHERKE -

HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TR

RESULTS eS|
Segment results VAR E (145,575) 14,468
Unallocated other income and XOBEEMBAR
gains or losses BHEE
Unallocated corporate expenses XOELEER
- staff costs (including - BIMK(BE
directors’ remuneration EEdl B
but excluding staff BREEET
commission expenses) BEexh)
- service charge to related - HBTYHEARZ
companies (note 33(a)(i)) k% E
(H713£33(3)(ii)
- others —Hfth
Loss before tax bRt 18
Income tax credit PrERER
Loss for the year FEHE

For the year ended 30 September 2022

B E2022F0H30H L& E

Placing and
underwriting

REAaH

HK$'000
FER

Corporate
finance
TRME
HK$'000
FTERT

Total
@it

HK$'000

FERT

R

3,426

(4,585)

(22,168)
)
(160,795)
157

(160,638)

Brokerage  Placing and Corporate
Financing services  underwriting finance  Elimination
ER S EREH i
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET TET TER TER TER TER
REVENUE WA
Segment revenue - external NPWA-HBEE
customers
Commission and fee income BERERWA - 67,496 6,823 11,140 - 85,459
Interest income RIEWA 418,503 8,862 - - - 427,365
Inter-segment sales NEEHE 320,153 - - - (320,153) -
738,656 76,358 6,823 11,140 (320,153) 512,824
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DEEHE (& N
Segment revenue and results (continued) SEBUT A R K 4R (7E)
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEEIHE L IRIRITHIBERINE o

Brokerage  Placing and Corporate
Financing services  underwriting finance
R KRS BREAGH rEmE

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TER TER TER TER TER

RESULTS 25
Segment results DEEE (257,760) 1914 1,236 (370) (254,980)
Unallocated other income and ROEEMB AR
gains or losses mHEE 2,276
Unallocated corporate expenses XOELEER
- staff costs (including - BIMA(BE
directors’ remuneration Al B
but excluding staff BREEET
commission expenses) e -du) (1,500)
- service charge to related - BTHERAZ
companies (note 33(a)(ii)) R E (M2
33()(i) (19,536)
- others — Htth (16,841)
Loss before tax CEIL ST (290,587)
Income tax expense FeRE (8,653)
Loss for the year FEEE (299,234)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note
3. Segment results represents the profit (loss) earned by
each segment without allocation of central administration
costs (including directors’ remuneration but excluding staff
commission expenses), unallocated other income and gains
or losses and service charge to related companies. This is the
measure reported to the executive directors of the Company
for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment. No analysis of segment asset and segment
liability is presented as the chief operating decision maker
does not regularly review such information for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment. Therefore,
only segment revenue and segment results are presented.

FI2 %7 B8 2 & 51 B 5K B2 Y 5E3PR i
ZREEGSTERER o DEEEE
B0 ERPRBREN 2 im A (B548) > MR 7
RPRTHRERGEEFZME -
HETMEXHERIN s RO EHM
W A R W w5 RS 1R A K 4d T RAE A
BIZIRFHE - L RBAATRITES
ERUMDEERMFERTEZHE
e AEZKEERRALIFE RS
REBERUDERER KT ERE
WEZIDWEERDBAEEZD
fro HIt > B2 D BWARDE
ES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & Z£2023F9830H IEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DEPEH (&
Other segment information Hth 53 &8 & #4
For the year ended 30 September 2023 # £2023F9H30HLLEFEE

Brokerage Placing and  Corporate
Financing services  underwriting E

HR KERE KEHEH GXHE

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FER TER FER TER

Additions of property and HREMENRE
equipment =
Addition of right-of-use assets HREFTHEEE 14,995
Depreciation of property and MERBBZITE
equipment 572
Depreciation of right-of-use FTHEEEZINE
assets 2,603
Impairment allowance on FTREEEZNERE
right-of-use assets 12,392
Impairment allowances on VR 2 BERE
accounts receivable, MNkR#EE
net of reversal 204,407
Impairment allowances on loans ~ EFRRBRZBEEE
and advances, net of reversal 185 % o] 197,504
Finance costs MHEER 14,295
For the year ended 30 September 2022 B E2022F9830HIEFE
Brokerage Placingand  Corporate
Financing services  underwriting finance
EX KERE EEHGHE ~XHE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET TET TET T
Additions of property and NEMERZE
equipment - 7,692 - -
Depreciation of property and MERZHEZITE
equipment - 3,098 - 7
Depreciation of right-of-use FTHEEEZINE
assets - 10,877 - -
Impairment allowances on EUERT 2 BERE
accounts receivable, MNER#EE
net of reversal 269,807 - - 2,215
Impairment allowances on loans ~ EFRRBRZAEERE
and advances, net of reversal MNeR#EE 318,073 - - -
Finance costs % ER 26,464 381 - -

Total
st
HK$'000
FER

3,432
25,415

3,827

4,692

15,753

206,134

197,504
14,871

7692

3106

10,877

272,022

318,073
26,845
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The following illustrates the geographical analysis of (i) the
Group's revenue from its external customers, based on the
country from which the trades are derived in relation to
brokerage revenue from overseas products trading and/or
based on the country in which the customers are located in
relation to financing, brokerage, placing and underwriting and
corporate finance revenue, and (i) the Group’s non-current
assets, based on the geographical location of the assets:

Revenue

Hong Kong 7 436,686
United States ES 4,358
Others Hh

441,046

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred
tax assets.

Information about major customer

For the years ended 30 September 2023 and 30 September
2022, there was no single customer who contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue.

9 EEE (4
3 & & B
UTFHRBOAEBREEIIBERZ
WAEEBINEREBE KL
ATE » DERXZHEREN X5
EF R FREHEHENEERE
WAME > BEREEEZER) »
MiV&EBEFERHEE (JVENREE
ZHBAE) 2 & D!

Non-curren} assets
ERBEE
2023 2022

HK$’000 HKS’000
Fi#n FET

18,553

1,393

19,946

M FRBEETOEEMITANEL
MIEEE °

FREEERNEHN
B E2023F9830H &% 20224 9830H
R IR E— A R AL
A S E IR ABI10% 8 M £ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 55 R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & Z£2023F9830H IEFE

6. REVENUE 6. WA
2023
HKS$’'000
FHER
Revenue N
Commission and fee income (Note (i): 1R&N&BUWA
(B1EE @) -
Commission and fees income on BERZSZHEN
dealing in securities (Note (ii) & U A (#7 32 (il)
Commission and fees income on EEHENRAEESEDN
dealing in futures and options ZzHEEhBRIA
contracts (Note (ii)) (Kt 3% (i)
Commission from insurance brokerage REBEELENTEER
and wealth management (Note (i) Z B (B 2% (i)
Corporate finance advisory services TrEREBRERTE
fee income (Note (i) WA (BT &2 (i)
Placing and underwriting commission FcERBHME
(Note (iv)) (b7 5% (iv))
Interest income: FMEWA
Interest income from margin and HEMBRA AREE
initial public offer (“IPO”) financing (MBr AHREEE
(Note (v)) &R A B U A
(B 5% (v) 72,444
Interest income from loans and ERNBRZFE
advances (Note (v)) WA (B 5 (v) 250,627
Interest income from bank deposits RITERZF B WA
(Note (ii)) (B 52 (i) 39,905
Others (Note (ii) B (K41 32 (i7)) 713

363,689

441,046
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2022
HKS'000
TETT

57,305

9,594

597

11,140

6,823

85,459

132,693

285,810

8,817
45

427,365

512,824




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

6. REVENUE (continued) 6. WA=

Notes: By EE -

(i)  The commission and fee income is the only revenue arising under () MBERERARANRESEHHR
the scope of HKFRS 15, while interest income is under the scope EEREGFEETEENE WA
of HKFRS 9. MASWACBREAEMBREER

FOREE o
Included in revenue, revenue arising from contracts with customers WA B35 T A B ) B N — R R R 1R B
recognised at a point in time and over time were HK$64,082,000 BZEREHNWA DR A64,082,000
(2022: HKS$73,982,000) and HKS$13,275,000 (2022: HKS11,477,000), Bt (20224 :73,982,0008 1) &
respectively. 13,275,000 7t (20224 : 11,477,000
BIT) °
All services provided to customers are for periods of one year or RHARPEZFABEREEHEA—FD
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated B o RIETBMBEREELDE155
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. ETNHEE 2"BENZEARATRENZ

RBERERKE -

(i) Amounts are reported under brokerage services segment as set (i) KLERBOIIETZ2MRESBHE KW
out in Note 5. =50

(i) Amounts are reported under corporate finance segment set out in (i) GtEMENHEBETZ2HRSEENMW
Note 5. 5E5 °

(iv)  Amounts are reported under placing and underwriting segment set (ivy EERHGHIEETZ2RESERN
out in Note 5. B 5ES ©

(v)  Amounts are reported under financing segment set out in Note 5. V) EBEXRDBETZ2KRSBHNME

5o
7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS OR LOSSES 7. Hthig A RUr=msli5iE

Other income (Note (i) HAan U A (B2 ()

Exchange gains or losses, net ERWMIEE > $58 362
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—BHE A RS
(Note (ii) (K1 22 (7)) (111
5,408
Notes: et
, . ; i B E202269830H L FE > A& H
(i) During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Group recognised (@) N e .
Covid-19 related government grants of HK$2,255,000 as included & 5820197 A 7% 5 75 48 B EX S 4 B

2,255,000 7T > st A B EBIFER

in other income in connection with the Employment Support o -
Poy PP FEIZ By R 9% 2 ) 3t 8175 B B9 Lt K

Scheme provided by the Hong Kong SAR Government.

Ao
(i) In May 2022, the Group disposed of the entire interest in the (i) 3_52022:\55 ’ Zi%\ﬁ_%ﬁiz%ﬁ
associate to an independent third party at a consideration of :\zﬁjmﬁég%g i\aﬁ"]? ij;%ég
HK$3,527,000, resulting in the recognition of a loss on disposal of T‘§1?:\?%3.527.\0097§7‘D » BRI E
HK$111,000. #548111,000%8 7t ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

8. IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES ON FINANCIAL 8. SR&EEZHEIRE  NB
ASSETS, NET OF REVERSAL 13 o]

2022
HKS$’000 HKS’'000

FET TAET

Net impairment allowances on: THIEE ZRERE
PER
Accounts receivable F& U BR =X 206,134 272,022
Loans and advances ERRBR 197,504 318,073
403,638 590,095
9. STAFF COSTS 9. BEIMZ

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$’000
FER THET

ETIRAEENRE

Staff costs represent the amounts paid

and payable to the directors and NTYEEhfEEZE
employees and comprise: X BIE
Salaries, bonus and allowances e s TBAL 2 ERL 69,438
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKEH FHEIHR
scheme 3,474
72,912
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B4 &EH

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TERT

Interest on: THEEZFE:
Bank borrowings RITE 11,275
Bonds issued (Note) BEITES (Wat) 15,189
Lease liabilities HE&E 350
Others HAh 31
26,845
Note: During the year ended 30 September 2022, the principal amount Bz EE2022408308 I EE > AT
of corporate bonds of approximately HK$499.1 million with ELEASEHI0THE B TER
interest accrued up to date of redemption were fully repaid. HEEOAMES M 2D R

/Zgo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

11.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S N EERRETHRASZME
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 8 (2022: 7) B BN F8% (2022F 1 782 ESR
directors and the chief executive were as follows: MESITHAEBZMESWT:

For the year ended 30 September 2023 # E20235F98300LLFE

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors

UHES BUFHTES

Choi Fan Man Wong
Daisy  Suk Hing, Wong Seung, Poon Wan  Tak Ming, Yu
Yeung Louisa ChiFai  Vanessa  YanWai  Choi Ha Gary  King Tin
REHE  BH@ RIE  EHE  BCR B¥E  REH  REX
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

T#ET THER T#ET T#ET TR TR T#ET TR
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
®,@) ©E) BH) G E)  (C ) (Notef) (Note) () ()
(M (2 (M (i (M (M
B @ b6 G ) G m) Q@) (HEe) (HEe) (© )

Fees e
Other remuneration 2t £

Salaries and allowances HeNEH

Discretionary bonus REBTLAN )
(Note (3))

Contributions to BRUBAGEER
retirement

Benefits scheme

Total remuneration HeEm
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

11. DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2022

DEINY

Yeung
B

HK$'000
TAT

(Note
)

Executive directors
YTES

Choi
Suk Hing,
Louisa

Pearl,
Chan

B {7
HKS'000

11. %%&%E?iﬁAEZME

B E2022F9830HIEFE

Independent non-executive directors
BIFAGES

Wong
Chu Poon Wan  Tak Ming,
Kar Wing Yan Wai Gary
KRR BLR BEH
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEn TER V¥ THR
(Note
0) ( (Note (c)

Fees e 250 250 250 101 250 250 149 1,500
Other remuneration HEthi £
Salaries and allowances HekEH 2,081 2,544 2,293 - - - - 6918
Discretionary bonus RETRALH20)
(Note () - - - - - - - -
Contributions to BREBRG AL
retirement
Benefits scheme 60 178 115 - - - - 353
Total remuneration HeEm 2,391 2972 2,658 101 250 250 149 8,771
Notes: Kt

(@) Discretionary bonus is determined as regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market

statistics.

(b)  The executive directors’

emoluments shown above were for

their services rendered in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

() MBRANDBEFEERLEXRE @
ARBNHHRFAALERBEFME ©

(b) LERFIIBTESNIHEARSEME
RERHENBAREESEERHERS
BERE - REAFER > EEHMERE
ERZHREXRERERBIEM
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

©

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services rendered as directors of the
Company. There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

Ms. Daisy Yeung is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and her emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by her as Chief Executive. No apportionment has been
made as it is impracticable to apportion this amount among her
services to the Company and its subsidiaries.

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa retired as executive director with effect
on 1 January 2023.

Ms. Pearl, Chan resigned as executive director with effect on 30
September 2022.

Mr. Chu Kar Wing retired as independent non-executive director
with effect on 25 February 2022.

Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa were appointed
as executive directors with effect on 1T December 2022.

Mr. Poon Yan Wai retired as independent non-executive director
with effect on 28 February 2023.

Mr. Yu King Tin was appointed as independent non-executive
director with effect on 28 February 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023F9830H IEFEE
12. EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group
included one (2022: two) director of the Company for the year
ended 30 September 2023, details of whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note 11 above. The emoluments
of the remaining four (2022: three) individuals for the year were
as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits

in kind & F
Bonus 1E4l
Contributions to retirement benefits BB EHEIHE

scheme

e RBELEY

12. EE &
FLE £2023F9830BILEEE » &
BEREREHFMATGEARE]—
202022 MB)EE > Mt
B EXXHEE1TIRE c RAEE » H
BRI (022F : =) A2 & W
T

2023
HKS$'000

2022
HKS'000

FERT TETT

3,642
5,016

180

8,838

The remunerations were within the following bands:

HK$2,000,001 to HKS$2,500,000 2,000,001 T E

2,500,0007%8 7T
HKS$2,500,001 to HKS$3,000,000 2,500,008 T E
3,000,0007% 7T
HK$3,000,001 to HKS$3,500,000 3,000,001 T &
3,500,000 7T

M= FTHEE :

Number of employees
EBEA#
2023

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

RAFE > AEBTES S TE
HEFHALARBHMAL  EFLHH
F A S B0 A AR E By 2 4%
B ERRERB ZMmE -
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Loss before tax has been arrived at after

charging:

Other expenses:

Auditor’s remuneration

Legal and professional fees
Advertising and promotion expenses

Information technology services and
communication expenses

Depreciation of property and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
General and administrative expenses
Rates and building management fee
Settlement expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE
13. LOSS BEFORE TAX

13. BRI AVRES 48

PRGBS IBE R :

HAthsz i :
1% BLED B
ERMNEXEHR
BEENERXH

B M AR K@
X H

MENREZITE

EREEEZITE
— MR RITEXH
ENETFEEHE
mEER
ETH 32
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2022
HKS'000
TAET

2,700
7,616
1,967

25,301

3,105
10,877
14,036

2,705

2,540
11,626

82,473
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023F9830H IEFEE
14. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

14. FRiSMUESR) FX

Current year: KEE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax SAMER
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FREREMMER

(Over) under provision in prior year:

BEHERIE:
Hong Kong HA
Deferred tax: IEIEFRIA
Current year (Note 26) KNEE ([t 5E26)

BEFE (BEREMSR)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HKS2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HKS2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly,
the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HKS2 million of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HKS2 million.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China ("PRC") on
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
for both years.
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2023 2022
HK$’000

HKS'000

Fi# T

8,948
19

276

(590)

8,653

R 1R E A R 1F IR AY R AT 10 w4l
BEMREEER ZE2000000%E 7T
i M) i 428.25% Z I R AR > B 1B
2,000,00078 7tz w1 #%16.5% Z 1R
REYM o AT E MG MRS BYE
BT a4 AE1R16.5% 2 i —
MERR - At » GEREEEREZ
& B F 1SR 5L E2,000,000% 5T 2 &
5THE SRR s A1) #48.25% 2 MEEH -
It i #8 382,000,000 7T 2 fih 5t & 2R
MOEFI216.5% 2 HEFHE o

BBEREARLNE (THE)) BXFT
BE (TRERAERE) REXRFRRF
MEBHGA > FEWNEAEMESE
B 2K 725% o



The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023F9830H IEFEE
14. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (continued)

14. FRIGIM (ER) R X% (4)
AEERERGARERAMRE
U 15 %% B BB B BT AS R B BRI R

comprehensive income as follows:

2023 2022
HKS'000 HKS’000
FET FAET
Loss before tax PRI AR 18 (160,795) (290,581)
Income tax at applicable rate #16.5% (20224 :
of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) 16.5%) 2 7 A X
FEZMER (26,531) (47946)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FIRFE M S A el R
for tax purpose THZMBEEE 2,908 1,597
Tax effect of income not taxable AR M S BARIRUL
for tax purpose AZMBEE (6,578) (2,662)
(Over) under provision in respect of BEFE(GBEERB)
prior years BHETE (452) 276
Utilisation of tax losses previously ERBEFEARBEHEIZ
not recognised RIBE 18 (18,195) (723)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RKEBRIRIBEEIEZ
MiEFE 49,721 58,656
Income tax at concessionary rate HEIERTHMN
FR3 M (165)
Others EHh (380)
Income tax (credit) expense for the year FEEFFEH (E%)
B 2 8,653

As at 30 September 2023, the Group had unused estimated
tax losses of approximately HKS$3,400,371,000 (2022:
HKS$3,209,370,000) available for offset against future profits
of the respective companies in which the losses arose. The
unused tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely with
no expiry date but subject to the approval of the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department. As at 30 September 2023 and
2022, no tax loss have been recognised as deferred tax assets
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams, of which
approximately HK$730,685,000 (2022: HKS788,789,000) arose
from the impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries and
was eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
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HL2023FE9HB30H  mER B E
BEELEEHBREZERBRAIZ
AR BFZRBBAEHFREBEEIR
#973,400,371,0005 70 (20224 :
3,209,370,00087c) c RKEFERHZR
HEBIEERBHmMUERRE
EWAFTEBERBERMLER HIA
EE o FX2023F &20225F 98308 »
BERARIREN IR Z A TER M 17
HEEIEBEIARLERBEE
Hr49730,685,000# 575 (20224 :
788,789,000 T) KREEKKHIB AT Z
PIERE > W ARSI TSR IR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023F9830H IEFEE
15. LOSS PER SHARE 15.

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Loss o]
Loss for the purpose of basic loss Bt EEREREIE
per share Z 518

Number of shares AV g 4=

Weighted average number of ordinary RARstEEREAREGE
shares for the purposes of basic loss ZEBRIME T
per share

Basic loss per share BEREFREE

No diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 September
2023 and 30 September 2022 were presented as there were
no potential ordinary shares outstanding during the years.

16. DIVIDEND 16.
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during 2023, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2022: HKSNil).

P 128
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2023 2022
HKS$’000 HKS'000

FERT TETT

D) (299,234)

6,740,846 6,740,846

HK(2.38) cents HK(4.44) cents
Al AW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

17. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 17. MERKE

Computer

Leasehold Furniture Office and other Motor

improvements  and fixtures equipment equipment vehicle Total
BRE
MAERME Hitt R HE 5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

mERE
HK$'000

FRRkEE
HK$'000

TEn

TEx

TEn TEn TEn TEn

COST A
At 1 October 2021 1202110815 16,417 2,295 6,730 23,472 673 49,587
Additions AE 832 185 259 5,606 810 7692
Disposals HE - - - - (673) (673)
At 30 September 2022 152022494308 17,249 2,480 6,989 29,078 810 56,606
Additions AE 973 6 - 2,453 - 3432
Written off ] (14,563) (1,540) (6,349) (12,868) - (35,320)
At 30 September 2023 15202398308 3,659 946 640 18,663 810 24,718
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZEMERAE

AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 October 2021 1202110818 15,815 2,225 6,730 21,838 673 47281
Provided for the year KEERE 720 59 90 2101 135 3,105
Eliminated on disposal HE BRI 8 - - - - (679) (673)
At 30 September 2022 152022494308 16,535 2,284 6,820 23939 135 49713
Provided for the year AEERE 562 68 89 2946 162 3,827
Written off S (14,563) (1,540) (6,349) (12,868) - (35,320)
At 30 September 2023 R20239830H 2,534 812 560 14,017 297 18,220
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 September 2023 1£20239430H 1125 134 80 4646 513 6,498
At 30 September 2022 12022498308 714 196 169 5139 675 6,893

All the above items of property and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the rate of 20% per annum, except
that leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of the lease terms or 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

17. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. MEREHEE

Impairment assessment

During the year ended 30 September 2023, as a result of the
recurring losses of the Group and significant uncertainty on
global and local economic environment, the management
of the Group concluded there was indicator for impairment
and conducted impairment assessment on property and
equipment, and right-of-use assets of carrying amounts
(before impairment allowance) of HKS$6,498,000 and
HKS21,506,000 (2022: HKS$6,893,000 and HKS7,247,000),
respectively. The Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating units of financing, brokerage services
and corporate finance to which the assets belong when it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
including allocation of corporate assets when reasonable and
consistent basis can be established.

Financing

The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group covering
the following 5 years with a pre-tax discount rate of 18%
(2022: 16%) as at 30 September 2023.

Based on the result of the assessment, the management
of the Group determined that the recoverable amount of
cash-generating unit is lower than the carrying amount. The
impairment amount has been allocated to each category of
property and equipment and right-of-use assets such that the
carrying amount of each category of asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal, its
value in use and zero. Based on the value in use calculation
and the allocation, impairment losses of HKSNil and
HKS$12,392,000 (2022: HKS2,833,000 and HKS5,577,000) has
been recognised against the carrying amount of property and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 30 September 2023,
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

17. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. MEREHE(E

Impairment assessment (continued) BT (&
Brokerage services AR

The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group covering
the following 5 years with a pre-tax discount rate of 18%
(2022: 16%) as at 30 September 2023.

Based on the result of the assessment, the management of
the Group determined that the recoverable amount of cash-
generating unit is above the carrying amount. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not result in impairment.

Corporate finance

The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group covering
the following 5 years with a pre-tax discount rate of 18% as
at 30 September 2023.

Based on the result of the assessment, the management
of the Group determined that the recoverable amount of
cash-generating unit is lower than the carrying amount. The
impairment amount has been allocated to each category
of property and equipment and right-of-use assets such
that the carrying amount of each category of asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less cost of
disposal, its value in use and zero. Based on the value in use
calculation and the allocation, impairment losses of HKSNil
and HKS$3,361,000 has been recognised against the carrying
amount of property and equipment and right-of-use assets as
at 30 September 2023, respectively.

REELBEMZOIWEIERETHIRE(E
BEEAEMETE - Zst8FEBAERN
I8 B B HL2023F 98308 R it
EREARAKRALEZVHEBEEZRS
TMETER 0 MR ATALIRE &18% (2022
F 116%) °

BESGEGER 5B EEEERE
REELBEMNZROEESNIRE
BE-EEEBEMEGEMANZERRZME
HEEREEZF G IEERRE -

EEHE
ReEEBUZI WO EEHRE
EREBESNEMEE - ZstEERE
RAEEEEER2023F98308FF
MERBERRAFEZMHTREZR
ERETRR > MATAEIR K 2318% °

REFHER AEEEEEET
REeEEF B2 WE S REENEE
HE BRESBEEIRESEYE
NEBEUNERREE  UESEE
ENRBEAGREBRRERFE
BHEMRA EFERAEENMSETN
BREE - REBEERAEEFENRDR
L2023 9H30H » WENRBEUKR
FTREEEZREAD BB RAE
&5 38 & 78 7t &2 3,361,000/ 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 55 R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EREEE
Leased
properties
HEME
HK$’000
TF#E
As at 30 September 2023 5202398 30H
Carrying amount REE 5,753
As at 30 September 2022 202249 9H30H
Carrying amount RmEE 1,670
For the year ended 30 September 2023 B E£2023F9H30HIEFE
Depreciation for the year RNEETE (4,692)
Impairment for the year NEERE (15,753)
Additions =T 25,415
Early termination of a lease REKILHEE (887)
Total cash outflow for leases HEZIRS A H4EEE (10,796)
For the year ended 30 September 2022 B E2022F9830HIEFE
Depreciation for the year RNEETE (10,877)
Additions NE 3,251
Total cash outflow for leases MEZREMHBERE (11,393)

No expenses relating to short-term leases incurred for the
years ended 30 September 2023 and 2022.

For both years, the Group leases various offices, an advertising
billboard and server center for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 24 months to 36 months
(2022: 24 months to 61 months). Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
Lease liabilities of HKS$22,076,000 (2022: HKS7,786,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HKS5,753,000
(2022: HKS1,670,000) as at 30 September 2023. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for

borrowing purposes.

Details of maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in

notes 27 and 38.

Impairment assessment

Details of the impairment assessment of right-of-use assets

are disclosed in note 17.

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. EREEE (&

72023498301 » ©#:%22,076,000
HIT (20224 : 7,786,000 ) HE&
& R REEEAS5,753,0008 7T

(20224 : 1,670,000 7T) - HEWZ
BREBEARBEZHESEZERER
Gh s WEMNE A RE - HEEERE
RIEEERIgE -

HEaRIPONZsF BRI
27238

i {8 5T {d
ERAREEZREFGZFBRE
PEMEEET7 o

19. B E E

HK$’000
FER

COST % 7%
At 1 October 2021, 30 September 2022 and 7520214910818 ~ 202249830H

30 September 2023 K22023F9H30H 9,802
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT #iH OB E
At 1 October 2021, 30 September 2022 and 752021910818 ~ 202249830H

30 September 2023 K22023%9H30H 9,802
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 September 2023 520234 9830H -
At 30 September 2022 5202249H30H -

Trading rights were fully amortised over 10 years from the
effective day of the merger of the Stock Exchange, the Hong
Kong Futures Exchange and the Hong Kong Securities Clearing

Company Limited to year of 2000.

R 5 EBE2000F B 2P ~ AR
FIkEBPREEFRATDZEHE
MEMERIOEFLUEHEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

20. OTHER ASSETS 20. Hth&E =
2023 2022
HKS$’000 HKS’000
F#ET FHET
Statutory and other deposits v S5 7,695
Statutory and other deposits primarily represent deposits with FEENAEMBETEREFRARR
various exchanges and clearing houses. They are non-interest GIMREBMZEE - ZERER
bearing. R o
21. LOANS AND ADVANCES 21. ERR KRB

2023 2022
HKS$’000 HKS'000

FERT TETT

Fixed-rate loans receivable FEUE &R EE = 2,575,923 2,776,406

Variable-rate loans receivable EWZEEER 197,076 239,784
2,772,999 3,016,190
Less: Provision for impairment AR E RS (696,292) (659,426)
2,076,707 2,356,764

Analysed as: PR IR I
Current mENEE D 1,615,488 1,669,893
Non-current JEmBNEL 461,219 686,871

2,076,707 2,356,764
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

21.

LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's fixed-rate and variable-
rate loans receivable together with their remaining contractual
maturity dates are as follows:

21.

Fixed-rate loans receivable: FEWEEMEER:
Within one year —FR
In more than one year but no more —FERERFRN
than five years
Over five years hFE®
Past due 2% H#f
Variable-rate loans receivable: R ZFEER:
Within one year —FR
In more than one year but no more —FERERFERN
than five years
Over five years AR
Past due 2% 83

Details of movements in provision for impairment of loans and
advances are set out in note 38.

BRMKEBR(E
AEEEEEENERIBER
ZREEERFGHAWHHE 250
e

2023 2022
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER TERT

1,071,674 1,379,686

174,334 126,481
150,376 342,656

1,396,384 1,848,723
493,958 268,387

1,890,342 2,117,110

4,612 8,794

21,069 47,811
115,440 169,923

141,121 226,528
45,244 13126

186,365 239,654

ERkBRAEEEES ZFIBH
MR MIFE38 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 55 R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H L FE
21. LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued)

The effective interest rates of the Group’s loans receivable are
as follows:

Effective interest rates:
il

Fixed-rate loans receivable 0.67% per month to 3.83%

per month

§H0.67%E5H3.83%

PR Bl E F R E ™

Variable-rate loans receivable
prime rate per annum

SEREBEMNE - 25%F
SEREENE

As at 30 September 2023, 241 (2022: 239) secured
loans with the aggregate gross amount of approximately
HKS$1,596,228,000 (2022: HKS1,596,182,000) were secured by
first legal charges in respect of respective properties located
in Hong Kong and Canada. They were advanced to various
independent borrowers and will be due for repayment within
1 to 30 years (2022: 1 to 30 years).

As at 30 September 2023, loans receivable amounting to
approximately HKS$738,581,000 (2022: HKS$787,450,000)
provided to independent third parties of the Group, were with
second or third legal charges in respect of properties located
in Hong Kong and Canada and will be due for repayment within
1 to 30 years (2022: 1 to 30 years) from the respective loans’
date of advance.

As at 30 September 2023, there are 2 (2022: 14) secured
term loans with the aggregate gross amount of approximately
HK$93,085,000 (2022: HKS$376,185,000). The borrowers hold
Hong Kong listed marketable securities under the securities
account in one of the Group entities. The Group has the right
to sell or require a sale of all these securities and use the
proceeds to repay the outstanding loans in the event that the
borrowers fail to pay the amount due on due date when the
value of marketable securities is sufficient to cover the margin
loan amount under the securities account. The remaining
gross balance of loans of approximately HKS$345,105,000
(2022: HK$256,374,000) were unsecured.
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Prime rate — 2.5% per annum to

. EMBRBR(E)

AEEBBRERZEEREMNERLOT:

2022

0.67% per month to 3.83%
per month

5 H067%E8H3.83%

Prime rate — 2.75% per annum to
prime rate per annum

SERBEAE - 275%%
SERBEEHE

75202398301 » 24118 (20224 : 239
18) 4858 49 741,596,228,0007 75 (20224
1,596,182,0008 70) 2 B\ E R T ULE
BRMERESYEZE—ETEHCER
o ZEERNRNFLLBUERN
TSRS 1ES04E (20224 ¢ 12 304F) A E £F

FL2023E9H830H » BT AEBB LS
=7 B FEU & 1 49738,581,0005% 7T (2022
F 17874500008 ) BUBEBRME KX
MEZE_HFZ TR I
BrASEMERZ BT HEBAREF1ES0
F(2022F 1E30F) REHAEE o

K2023FE 9830 BEHRELNA
93,085,000 7t (20224 : 376,185,000
BIT) 2218 (20224 1 1418) BIEHAE
HER ZEEBRANLER —BEE
ZHESFRPAFEE B LM ER S
MZEERATNE A REEED
FIE - MAERESFNEERRUERE
HERPATHHRERBE AAEEE#
HEXRBEKRHEMBZERSLFER
FIfSRBEUEERREEER K TER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

21.

LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued)

As at 30 September 2023 and 30 September 2022, there are
no individual loans with net carrying amount, on an individual
basis, being more than 10% of the net carrying amount of the
total loans and advances.

Details of credit risk profile disclosure are set out in “credit
risk and impairment assessment” in note 38.

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

21. ERMBRBR(E
722023598300 K% 2022498308 -
BEEETREBRBRERRD
AR EF BE10% (B B B o

EERRBERZFBREH KT
38z MEE E K K B ETF(E) o

22. FEULER FX

2023
HK$'000
FER

2022
HKS'000
TETT

Accounts receivable from the business HREZFHESZEXH 2
of dealing in securities: & W BR #X
Clearing houses, dealers, brokers EERR58
and cash clients RaEeMBEER 65,133 42,038
Secured margin loans BIEEFEER 2,006,820 2,031,389
IPO margin loans BANHEEFRERN 1,110 2,408
Accounts receivable from the business HREHEENBEH X
of dealing in futures contracts: Z ERWERFR
Clearing houses, brokers and EER S KRERFRE
margin clients =] 74,045 48,522
Accounts receivable from the business KRB 2REEF
of corporate finance & W BR 7R 6,173 2,860
2,153,281 2127217
Less: provision for impairment R E B (1,641,364) (1,435,410)
511,917 691,807

The settlement terms of accounts receivable, except for
secured margin loans and IPO margin loans, arising from
the business of dealing in securities are two days after trade
date, and of accounts receivable arising from the business of
dealing in futures contracts are one day after trade date.

Normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from the
business of corporate finance and placing and underwriting
are determined in accordance with the contractual terms. The
Group seeks to maintain tight control over its outstanding
accounts receivable from the business of corporate finance in
order to minimise the credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 22. FEWBRFR (&

Details of credit risk profile disclosure are set out in “credit
risk and impairment assessment” in note 38.

As at 30 September 2023, accounts receivable from
foreign brokers denominated in Australian dollar, Renminbi,
Singapore dollar, British Pound, Euro and United States
dollar were approximately HK$199,000 (2022: HKS$201,000),
HKS1,000 (2022: HKS6,000), HKS14,000 (2022: HKS29,000),
HKS43,000 (2022: HKS39,000), HKS84,000 (2022: HKSNIl) and
HKS$50,846,000 (2022: HKS33,211,000) respectively.

As at 30 September 2023 and 30 September 2022, no
individual account represented more than 10% of the total
balance of accounts receivable.

No ageing analysis of secured margin loans and IPO margin
loans is disclosed as in the opinion of the executive directors
of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of this business.

The ageing analysis of the remaining balance of the accounts
receivable (before impairment) are as follows:

Past due: EHA

0-30 days 0ZE30H

31-60 days 31E60H

61-90 days 61ZE90H

Over 90 days B 4B90H
Accounts receivable which were past due B %8 88 2 18 W BR =X

Accounts receivable which were not past due >k B H > FE UR BR =X
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EERBRBERZFBREH KT
38z MEE E & K BB (&) o

22023F 98 30H » FEWUIB IMR A BR RN
LURTTS AR B FN0I o 3582 Bt M
ETTEHE 9 R14943199,00078 7T (2022
£ :201,000587c) ~1,0008 75 (2022
F:6,000%7T) ~ 14,0005 7T (20224 :
29,0008 7T) ~43,0005 7T (20224 :
39,000 7T) 84,0007 7T (20224 :
ZHIT) 250,846,000 7T (20224 ¢
33,211,00037T) °

/5202398308 K& 20224F 94308 >
7 {8 B BR T8 {4 FE UABR R 45 BR AR AR
HBiE10% o

KRBPITEFRS > BRILIEEXRS
MHE o BRE AT E S INEE
WITEKRBEERBAFRERKER
RNAEEFRERZIRE DN -

FE U BR SR 5 T 85 28 CRUERT) Z iR 7
T

2023 2022
HKS$’000 HKS'000

FHT T

1,395 882
988 2
620 4

3,386 2,708

6,389 3,596
138,962 89,824

145,351 93,420
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For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS — GENERAL 23. BIEMERITER——RERRB
ACCOUNTS

2023
HK$’000

FTERT

Pledged bank deposits BERFIRITER 160,000 160,000

The deposits of HKS$160,000,000 (2022: HKS$160,000,000) $R1T772F160,000,00078 7% (20224 :
with a bank were to secure the banking facilities granted 160,000,000787T) EfF AR EEER
to the Group to the extent of HK$160,000,000 (2022: R1TREE /R %160,000,0008 7t (2022
HK$160,000,000), of which HKSNil (2022: HKSNil) was utilised ££:160,000,00038 70) Z I H
as at 30 September 2023. 202398308 &22022F 98300 K
E) St
24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24. SRITHEBRRIE

2023 2022
HKS$’000 HKS'000

Fi#n T

Bank balances R1T 4 ER

- segregated accounts (Note) — IR P (K 32) 1,406,891 1,573,074

— general accounts and cash ——RERARERE 1,002,263 860,796

2,409,154 2,433,870
Note: The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients and . TFETSREERBREY > K&£E
other institutions in the course of the conduct of the regulated W RFEEEREMIEETERZ
activities. These clients’ money are maintained in one or more MIE - ZEERPREFER—EX
segregated bank accounts and bear interest at commercial rates. ZEBILRITRA AR IZEERE
The Group has recognised the corresponding accounts payable R AEBERIAENTERE
to respective clients and other institutions. However, the Group PR EMEE AR o AT -
currently does not have an enforceable right to offset those AEBIRRBUEMFAERZZEIR
payables with the deposits placed. HZ SRR Z AR B BITH o

As at 30 September 2023, bank balances and cash 22023598301  LURIT ~ IIEATT
denominated in Australian dollar, Canadian dollar, Japanese HE =7t AR HiE NI Tet
Yen, United States dollar, Renminbi, British Pound and BZRITERNMIREDHIA276,0008
Singapore dollar, are approximately HKS$76,000 (2022: 7t (20224 :77,000487T) ~ 84,0004
HKS77,000), HKS84,000 (2022: HKS$S149,000), HKS3,000 7t (20224 :1149,0007%75) ~3,00078 7T
(2022: HKS8,000), HKS281,593,000 (2022: HKS251,957,000), (20224 :8,00047T) ~281,593,000
HKS$14,493,000 (2022: HKS$34,200,000), HKS10,000 (2022 Bt (20224 :251,957,000875)
HKS$7,025,000) and HKS$5,807,000 (2022: HKS$5,985,000) 14,493,000 7T (20224 134,200,000
respectively. BJt) ~10,0008 78 (20224

7,025,000 7%) K25,807,00078 (2022
£ :5,985,0005&7T) ©
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kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023F9H30H I FE
25. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accounts payable from the business

of dealing in securities: R

Clearing houses and brokers EEPT R4

Margin and cash clients FRAREER
Accounts payable from the business HEENEEXHZ

of dealing in futures contracts: FE(TBRFR :

Margin clients FTRER

HAEBEXEZ BN

The settlement terms of accounts payable, except for margin
clients, arising from the business of dealing in securities are
two days after trade date and accounts payable arising from
the business of dealing in futures contracts are one day after
trade date. No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion
of the executive directors of the Company, the ageing analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of this
business.

Accounts payable to margin and cash clients arising from the
business of dealing in securities and dealing in futures bear
interest at commercial rates, and are repayable on demand
subsequent to settlement date.

Included in accounts payable, amounts of approximately
HKS1,406,891,000 and HKS1,573,074,000 as at 30 September
2023 and 30 September 2022 respectively were payable to
clients and other institutions in respect of the segregated bank
balances received and held for clients and other institutions in
the course of conducting the regulated activities. However, the
Group currently does not have an enforceable right to offset
these accounts payable with the deposits placed.

As at 30 September 2023, accounts payable denominated in
Australian dollar, Japanese Yen, United States dollar, Singapore
dollar, British Pound and Renminbi were approximately
HKS71,000 (2022: HKS72,000), HKS3,000 (2022: HKS8,000),
HKS$222,945,000 (2022: HKS185,540,000), HKS162,000 (2022:
HK$458,000), HKSNil (2022: HKS7,016,000) and HKS$4,460,000
(2022: HKS$21,382,000) respectively.

. 140 Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREB G R AT

Annual Report 2022 / 2023 &R

25. FE{3BR Fx

2022
HKS'000

TETT

20,345 8,033
1,330,000 1,484,312
187,365 160,841
1,537,710 1,653,186

RHEBEXBRELE ZBMERN(HF
BERBINZEEHRATZHE
mH > MABEENEEXRFELZ
BURRZEEHRARZAR —
He ZRARRATESSD R » BRI
EBME - MRl T E LN NE
18 S B ARE 24T °

HESEEMRNEEEXTMELE
Z}ET‘H%@&EE%%)EZ S kR
%%U%Eﬂ% C WARREREBRBER

MEETZREXBBERR/ER
NEMEBWER RFEAZBIIRT
SERT S > 1R202359A30H 7322022
FORBHZZEMNEREBERAR R
ﬁ&ﬁfﬂﬁ;&%*ﬁﬁﬁzT)\Iﬁﬁ%Uﬁ’J%
1,406,891,0007% 7t & 1,573,074,0007%
7T ° PAM > AEE IR ELFTF )
ZERIMHEZFRMNRRZRE N
TR ©

7520234F9830H  LURT-HE =
ToOFN T s EEMARESHEZIE
R B9 72371,0008 70 (20224F :
72,0007 75T) ~3,0008 75 (20224 :
8,000 7T) ~222,945,000% T (2022
£ :185,540,000% ) ~162,000
BT (20224 458,000 T) &
T (20224 :7,016,0008T) &
4,460,000 70 (20224 121,382,000
7o) °©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023%F9830H IEFE
26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 2

EEREEE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HKS'000

(o))

FAERT TETT

Deferred tax assets RIERIEE BE 590
The following are the deferred tax assets recognised and UMTERARFENRBETFERI ZIE
movements thereon during the current and prior years: EMBEENMHEHE R

Accelerated tax

depreciation ECL provision Total
FHES

MEMIANE BERE st

HKS’'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000

THET TERT TER

At 1 October 2022 $520224%1081H - - -
Credit to profit or loss Nka8& HF14)

(Note 14) 177 413 590
At 30 September 2022 and  $X2022FE9830H &

30 September 2023 2023%9830H 177 413 590

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HE AR

2023 2022
HKS$’000 HKS'000

FERT TETT

EHAERE:

Lease liabilities payable:

Within one year —F R 6,464
Within a period of more than one year but BB —E B BBME
not more than two years 1,322
7786
Less: Amount due for settlement within B : 3 A RESHEEZ
12 months shown under 1218 B /W 2 87
current liabilities mEZHRIE (6,464)
Amount due for settlement after FAIEREEE 21218
12 months shown under non-current B#®IBEE 8
liabilities 1,322
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

28. SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS 28. JHEASRITEMR
As at 30 September 2023 and 30 September 2022, no short- 52023F9830H &2022F9830H »
term bank borrowings utilised were secured by bank deposits BEE R IT AR EAEE 2 R1TE
of the Group (note 23). The remaining balance as at 30 FAE R (BT 5E23) © $52023F9530
September 2023 represented unsecured bank borrowings. The HZ R T ERIERIEFIBITER o iR
bank borrowings carried interest at HIBOR+2% p.a. (2022: with TRERBREBRITEEREM2%T
a range of HIBOR+2% p.a. to HIBOR+2.5% p.a.). B Q022 . HEABRITHAEREM2%

EFBIRTEARXFEM25%ZMH) °

2023 2022
HKS$’000 HKS'000

FERT TETT

The carrying amounts of bank loans HEBEREREEREBER
that contain a repayment on demand BZERUTHEER

clause (shown under current liabilities) ZIRITERGI AR
but repayable: Bas 2REE:
On demand due to breach of loan AEBRENLHERE
covenants KEZE 210,000 -
Within one year —FR - 430,000
210,000 430,000
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. Bg#x

Number of ordinary shares of Nominal value of
HK$0.01 each ordinary shares
SREEIOEBTZEERRHHE LEkRizEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$’000 HKS'000
T#ERT TET

Authorised: ETE
At beginning of year F17 SO 500,000,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
At end of year F# 500,000,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETNERE:
At beginning of year 30 6,740,845,724 6,740,845,724 67,408
At end of year FH 6,740,845,724
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE
30. SHARE OPTIONS

The shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 26 January 2017 to approve the adoption of a share
option scheme of the Company which became effective on 27
January 2017 (“2017 Share Option Scheme”). A summary of
the 2017 Share Option Scheme is set out as follows:

1.

Purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group.

Eligibility

Eligible participants include employees (whether full-time
or part-time, including Non-executive Directors) and such
other eligible participants.

Shares available for issue under the 2017

Share Option Scheme

(i)  Total number of shares as at 19 December
2023 (i.e. the date of approval of these financial
statements): 674,084,572 shares.

(i)  Percentage of the issued shares that it represents:
10%.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible

participant under the 2017 Share Option

Scheme

(i)  in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the shares in
issue in any 12-month period unless approved by
the shareholders; and

(i)  options granted to substantial shareholders or
Independent Non-executive Directors or their
respective associates in any 12-month period
exceeding the higher of 01% of the shares in
issue and with an aggregate value in excess
of HKS$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company.
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For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

30. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
5. Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option
At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the Board but in any event no
exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

6. Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised
No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

7. () Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HKS1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant;

(iii)  Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

8. Basis for determining the exercise price:
The exercise price is determined by the Board (subject to
adjustment) and will not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the share as stated in the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

9. The remaining life of the 2017 Share Option
Scheme:
Approximately 4 years (expiring on 26 January 2027).

During the years ended 30 September 2023 and 2022, no
option was granted, exercised, cancelled, lapsed or remained
outstanding under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and no
share-based payment expenses have been recognised in both
current and prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

31.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of independent trustees. Employees who
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment
of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within
the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December
2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit or loss
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there are
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At 30 September 2022 and 30 September 2023, no forfeited
contributions arose upon employees leaving the ORSO
Scheme.
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For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 32.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s loans and
borrowings arising from financing activities, including both

cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash

flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement

of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Bond interest

STATEMENTS

MEZDEENGRIHK

TRFLAEERELTHELENE
mMRERET  aEHEENIFRE
2y METHELENERSER
RBeRBNBEANRKREEZRER
EAEENGEREAERTNE
SRELTHFEERENEGR -

PEVELI
(included Short-
in other term bank Lease
creditors) borrowings  Bonds issued liabilities
EiREHE
(3 A Hth
IR HEHBTER BRTES HEaRE Wt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T#ET T#ERT T#ET THERT
At T October 2021 55202110818 4,769 370,000 499,080 15,578 889,427
Financing cash flows MERERE (19,038) 60,000 (500,000) (11,393) (470,437
Interest expense FEXH 14,269 - 920 350 15,539
New leases entered AL - - - 3,251 3,251
At 30 September 2022 182022498308 - 430,000 - 7,786 437786
Financing cash flows MEREME - (220,000) - (10,796) (230,796)
Interest expense FEXH - - - 576 576
Early termination of a lease ~ REXRIAE - - - (905) (905)
New leases entered HEIMAL - - - 25,415 25,415
At 30 September 2023 152023498308 - 210,000 - 22,076 232,076
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. AEALRS
(@ In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in () MR ZEFHOVHHRKRAEMID
these consolidated financial statements, the Group had DNEFEEM 2 X549 > AEEH
the following significant transactions with related parties: RRE A THEIT T EATS:
2023 2022
HKS'000 HKS'000
T#ER TAET
() Corporate finance advisory iy MPEEARKRZ
services fee income from TERMEBBRS
related companies (note 3 & 5) B A (17 323%5) 3,850
(i) Sharing of information technology (i) LB RERF
services and administrative MEAFZEAN
expenses paid and payable ERBRTHER
to related companies (note 2 & 5) (Bt 322)25) 19,536
(i)  Commission and brokerage (i) mTFHWEREE R
income from RELBEWA
- a related company (hote 3 & 5) ——fEREAE
(W7 323%5) 6
- directors of the Company —ARBZESE
(note 1 & 3) (Hra1%3) -
(iv)  Interest income from directors (v REXRBDEZRZ
of the Company (note 7 & 3) FEWA (a2 1K3) -
(v)  Printing, advertising and promotion (v) BB AE ST
expenses to related companies Rl - BEREE
(note 2 & 5) ER (2R 1,507
(i)  Accounts payable to margin and  (vi) HHEEEBMEL
cash clients arising from ZENFRERE
business of dealing in BERZER
securities by
- directors of the Company —ARBZES
(note 1 & 2) (B aE152) 2,463
(vi)) Rental and other deposits paid to  (vii) BRBAE XL
related companies HehHEMgs
(note 2, 4 & 5) (HFE£2 ~ 45%5) 3216
(viil) Interest expense from lease (vii) ERBREASHEZ
payable to related companies MEZH
(note 3, 5 & 6) (Hta23 ~ 5J6) 309
(ix) Lease liabilities payable to related  (x) ENBEERTZ
companies (note 3, 5 & 6) HE&aRE
(W53 ~ 57%6) 4,968
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023F9830H IEFEE
33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

(b)

. 148

Notes:

M

(continued)

For the transactions with the director(s) of the Company,
the directors include a director who is one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the relevant private discretionary trusts
set up by Dr. Albert Yeung who is the deemed controlling
shareholder of the Company.

These transactions are connected transactions exempted
from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.33 of
the Listing Rules.

These or some of these transactions are disclosable
continuing connected transactions (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of the Company of which
details have been set out in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” under “Directors’ Material Interests
in Transactions, Arrangements, Contracts and Connected
Transactions” of the Directors’ Report. The directors
confirmed that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

This amount represents refundable rental deposits and other
deposits paid for the continuing connected transactions
as set out in item 1 of the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” under “Directors’ Material Interests
in Transactions, Arrangements, Contracts and Connected
Transactions” of the Director’s Report.

The related companies are ultimately controlled by the
relevant private discretionary trusts set up by Dr. Albert
Yeung who is the deemed controlling shareholder of the
Company.

During the current year, interest expenses of HK$517,000
(2022: HKS309,000) was incurred in relation to lease payable
to related companies. As at 30 September 2023, lease
liabilities payable to related companies was HKS$21,204,000
(2022: HKS$S4,968,000) and the corresponding carrying
amount (before impairment allowances) of the right-of-
use assets was HKS$20,622,000 (2022: HKS4,551,000).
The total cash outflow for leases with related companies
for the year ended 30 September 2023 was HKS$9,517,000
(2022: HK$9,903,000) in accordance with the relevant rental
agreements.

The compensation to directors and key management
personnel was disclosed in notes 11 and 12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9H30H I FE
34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30
September 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

34. T EMBRT
1520234 K2 202299H30H » & A F)
FEWNBRABIZEEWT:

Proportion of nominal

Name of subsidiary

WELRAE

Place of

incorporation/

operation

AL
ERME

Issued and fully
paid capital/
registered capital
BEARBR
Bf/AMES

value of issued share
capital directly held
by the Company
FREREZERT
RHEEELA

30.9.2023
%

309.2022
%

Principal activities

FEXRE

Easy Facility Limited Hong Kong HKST 100 100 Provision of money lending services
FHEBRAT H BT RUENRE
Emperor Asset Management Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$7,000,000 100 100 Provision of asset management services
HEEEEEARAT # 7,000,000% 7T RUEEEERS
Emperor Corporate Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 Provision of corporate finance advisory
(formerly known as Emperor services
Capital Limited)
HEMEXMERRAR 5E 10,000,0007% 7T RUPEREEBRSE
(FIBHEEREFRAF)
Emperor Capital (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 Provision of promotion and marketing
services in the PRC
HERSPEAEBERAT &H 100,000% T RHBERGESEERTHEERS
Emperor Finance Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 100 Provision of money lending services
HEHBERAD &H 2B RUEEMRSE
Emperor Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100 100 Provision of futures brokerage services
HEBEERAH HE 50,000,0007% 7t RUBECLRE
Emperor Prestige Credit Limited Hong Kong HKS$1,000,000 100 100 Provision of money lending services
EEFHEERRAT ) 1,000,0007% 7T RUHETRS
Emperor Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$900,000,000 100 100 Provision of securities brokerage services
and margin financing services
HERFERATFIBESHS HE 900,000,000 7t RUEFLCLRERAERERS
(BH)ERRF)
Emperor Wealth Management Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$6,500,000 100 100 Provision of insurance and other
brokerage Services
EENEEEERAT N 6,500,000 7t RARR R H 2R %
Honour Fine Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Provision of online platform media
services
RBRERAT &H BT R LT ORERE
Super Team (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HKS$100 100 = Provision of business advisory services
BEREEBERAT &H 100 7T RUMEELEARS
R EEAA (LB BRAR PRC HK$1,000,000 100 100 Business development in the PRC
HE 1,000,000% 7T RHBEETERER
REREHA (LR BERABL PRC HK$1,000,000 100 100 Business development in the PRC
HE 1,000,000% 7T RHBEETERER
RERERAFINERADH PRC HK$500,000 100 100 Business development in the PRC
FE 500,000/ 7t RHEETERER
# The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise. # ZMB AT EEERZE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the executive directors, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group.

To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

executive directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the year, or at any time during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 55 R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & Z£2023F9830H IEFE
35. SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 35. xS HE

COMPANY

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary

Subordinated loan due from a

FRBEE
R—RENBARZRE
B —ENE ARz

subsidiary BEEXR
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & ST Fft J&8 2 B) 2 R I
Tax recoverable B [B] W i 18
Other assets Hth&EE
Bank balances and cash IRITHER MR E
Current liabilities mEmEE
Other creditors and accrued Hoh & 7 BR 7k M2 e 5t
charges &HA
Amount due to a subsidiary FEN—EREBAEZ
I
Short-term bank borrowings FRHARIT A
Net current assets mEEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBAR
Net assets BEFE
Capital and reserves BEARNEE
Share capital A& 2
Reserves #E

Total equity (Note)

T AR ER (M 3E)
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219,003

2,150,000
2,369,003

2,871,481

222
28,629
2,900,332

1,078

2,007,968
210,000
2,219,046
681,286
3,050,289

3,050,289

67,408
2,982,881
3,050,289

2022

HKS'000

TET

219,003

2,150,000

2,369,003

2,917,825
14,944
220
18,549

2,951,538

1,497

1,995,953
430,000

2,427,450

524,088

2,893,091

2,893,091

67,408
2,825,683

2,893,091




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023%F9830H IEFE
35. SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 35. "G FEEHINE (&

36.

COMPANY (continued)

Note:

EE

Share Share Special Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
kad RHOEE HHGHE RitisiE 4 st
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
F#Ex F#ExT F#Ex F#Ex F#ET
At 1 October 2021 202110818 67,408 3,184,623 101,953 (442146) 2,911,838
Loss and total comprehensive EEEBENZ2E
expense for the year B HR %8 - - - (18,747) (18,747)
At 30 September 2022 1520228 9H30H 67,408 3,184,623 101,953 (460,893) 2,893,091
Profit and total FERARE2@E
comprehensive income LN
for the year - - - 157,198 157,198
At 30 September 2023 520238 9H30H 67,408 3,184,623 101,953 (303,695) 3,050,289

Special reserve represents the difference between nominal value of the
ordinary shares of the subsidiaries of the Company in issue and the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company for acquisition of a
subsidiary pursuant to a group reorganisation on 2 April 2007.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
short-term bank borrowings as disclosed in respective
note, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves as set out on
the consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and respective notes. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior
year.

The management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the share
capital. In view of this, the Group manages its overall capital
structure through the drawdown and repayment of bank
borrowings, issue of bonds, payment of dividends and issue
of share capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

36.

37.

. 152

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated
Subsidiaries”) are registered with Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”") for the business they operate in.
The Regulated Subsidiaries are subject to liquid capital
requirements under Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R") adopted by the SFC. Under the
SF(FR)R, the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain their liquid
capital in excess of HKS3 million or 5% of their total adjusted
liabilities, whichever is higher. The required information is filed
with SFC on a monthly basis.

Another subsidiary of the Group is licensed with the Insurance
Authority. It is required to maintain a minimum net asset value
of HK$100,000 at all times.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES OFFSETTING

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial
assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that covers similar financial instruments that are either:

offset in the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position; or

not offset in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC") and brokers, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and brokers on the same
settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
the accounts receivable and payable with brokerage clients
that are due to be settled on the same date and the Group
intends to settle these balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the same
date which are being offset, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
dealers, brokers and brokerage clients that are not to be
settled on the same date, financial collateral including cash
and securities received by the Group, deposit placed with
HKSCC and brokers do not meet the criteria for offsetting
in the consolidated statement of financial position since the
right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only enforceable
following an event of default.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

37. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 37. M EEHEEMARZIEH
OFFSETTING (continued) (#&)
As at 30 September 2023 1£2023%9H30H

Gross Related amounts not set off
amounts  Net amounts in the consolidated statement
of recognised of financial of financial position
financial assets UHEMRGEESMBRARA
liabilities presented w2 HARIE
Gross  set off in the in the
amounts  consolidated  consolidated
of recognised  statement of  statement of
financial financial financial Financial Collateral
assets position position instruments received Net amount
KiZEME REERE
iR T R PO IEE 8 KRRA
CHEREM ZBRIEM 2JZER
BEZHE BfRZEE BHEZEEH EMIA CEBRiERR BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T#ERT T#ET THERT THET THERT

Financial assets EHEE
Amounts due from BUWHEEM RS

clearing house, BBEAR

dealers, brokers and RULEBERZ

brokerage clients IR 652,799 (140,882) 511,917 (38,182) (376,288)
Deposits placed with BHRREEmZ S

clearing house 7,695 7,695

Gross Related amounts not set off
amounts  Net amounts in the consolidated statement
of recognised of financial of financial position
financial liabilites YEKEZEHBERARA
assets presented w2z ERRE
Gross  set off in the in the
amounts  consolidated  consolidated
of recognised  statement of  statement of
financial financial financial Financial Collateral
liabilities position position  instruments pledged Net amount
RiEEHME REERE
1K 370 2R PO 46 8 HKRRA
OHEZREM ZEBHEIER 27z
BfiziEE BEZHEE AQFEZ3E EMIA CEHERR B8
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
THT THET T#ET THET T#ET THRT

Financial liabilities Eka ) =N
Amounts due to ENEEM X5
clearing house, BBEAR
dealers, brokers and REEBKRRZ
brokerage clients A 1,678,592 (140,882) 1,537,710 1,499,528
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For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

37. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 3. saMEERESTHAaFEZIK
LIABILITIES OFFSETTING (continued) (#2)
As at 30 September 2022 1520229 9H30H

Gross Related amounts not set off
amounts  Net amounts  in the consolidated statement
of recognised of financial of financial position
financial assets RE B R /R%:ZW
[EIES presented HZBERE
Gross  set off in the in the
amounts of  consolidated  consolidated
recognised  statement of  statement of
financial financial financial Financial Collateral
assets position position instruments received Net amount
ﬁ*ﬂ?’\m’ REEHMEH
3 ik & 7Y
2HZ &R
& FHMIE BlERS R
HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
THET TET THER TERT TEx THET
Financial assets THEE
Amounts due from fEWEEFT
clearing house, [E %%%E)\&
dealers, brokers and RILEBERZ
brokerage clients A 776,450 (84,643) 691,807 (14,837) (602,123) 74,853
Deposits placed with BRREEmZ S
clearing house 5189 - 5,189 - - 5189

Gross
amounts of
recognised

EWE]
liabilities

Gross
amounts of
recognised

financial
assets

set off in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
posw’tion

Net amounts
of financial
liabilities
presented

in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
posmon

Related amounts not set off
in the consolidated statement
of financial position

B R R A
Z BEFIE

Collateral
pledged

Financial
instruments

Net amount

EEE
A EWIE ERERR FH
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
THET FTERT FTiEx FTERT FiET TET
Financial liabilities Erky=N
Amounts due to FEAEEm
clearing house, [E ,%%E)\&
dealers, brokers and REEXBRERRZ
brokerage clients | 1,737,829 (84643)  (1,653186) (14,831) - 1,638,355
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE
38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. £t A EIEBERBE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include other debtors
and deposits, accounts receivable, loans and advances,
bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, accounts
payable, short-term bank borrowings, lease liabilities and other
creditors. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements
in foreign exchange rates relating to receivables from and
payables to foreign brokers and foreign currency deposits
with banks. The management monitors foreign exchange
exposures and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange exposures should the need arise.

It is the Group’s policy for each operating entity to operate
in local currencies as far as possible to minimise currency
risks. Most of the Group’s principal businesses are conducted
and recorded in Hong Kong dollar, the functional currency of
respective group entities, except for certain receivables from
and payables to foreign brokers and bank deposits which
are denominated in Australian dollar, Canadian dollar, United
States dollar, Renminbi, Japanese Yen, British Pound and
Singapore dollar (see notes 22, 24 and 25 for details). The
executive directors of the Company considered that the effect
of currency risk is insignificant as the Group has minimal
exposure in Australian dollar, Renminbi, Japanese Yen, Euro,
British Pound and Singapore dollar and there is the linked
exchange rate system of Hong Kong dollar against United
States dollar. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis in relation
to foreign currency exposure has been carried out by the
management.

AEETESHITESFEHEMBYR
RRTFR ~ EUWERR ~ ERMREBR
IRITHEFRRE « BRFIRITER
AR EHRTER -HES
BEREMEMERR - ZFEMIE
ZHBREREBZME - HZFES
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NERZERRE  UERBERUEN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023F9830H IEFEE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. Rl EMEIEBEREE

AND POLICIES (continued)
Cash flow interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate accounts receivable, bank balances, loans and
advances, accounts payable and short-term bank borrowings.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly related to the
fluctuation of Prime Rate arising from the Group’s accounts
receivable and loans and advances, market savings interest
rate arising from the Group’s bank balances and HIBOR
arising from Group's short-term bank borrowings. The Group’s
exposure to interest rates on financial assets and financial
liabilities are detailed below.

Financial instruments bearing variable interest rates in
nature

Assets BE
Accounts receivable FE UL BR =X
Loans and advances ERRBR
Bank balances R 17 45 BR
Liabilities =N
Short-term bank borrowings FHRIRITE M

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period
and it is assumed that the amount of the above assets and
liabilities at the end of the reporting period was in existence
for the whole year and all other variables were held constant
throughout the respective year. A 50 basis point (2022: 50
basis point) change represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates in respect of
variable rate accounts receivable, loans and advances, bank
balances and short-term bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023%F9830H IEFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. Rl EMEIEBIEREE

AND POLICIES (continued)
Cash flow interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity (continued)

Change in basis points

EE 2

+50

HK$’'000
FER

REEFREE

Decrease (increase) in loss
after tax for the year

In management’'s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the market interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate benchmark reform

The short-term bank borrowings of the Group will be subject
to the interest rate benchmark reform. The Company is closely
monitoring the market and managing the transition to new
benchmark interest rates, including announcements made by
the relevant Interbank Offered Rate (“IBOR") regulators.

HIBOR

As at 30 September 2023, the Group’s bank borrowings of
HKS$210,000,000 are bearing interest indexed to HIBOR. Based
on the assessment of the management, the bank borrowings
are not subject to the reform and HIBOR will continue to be
used until maturity of the terms.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has a delegated
team to compile the credit and risk management policies,
to approve credit limits and to determine any debt recovery
action on those delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual receivable
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

I8 () 3,266

(#)
REREFMERREE)

FIEHRE (&)

2022
Change in basis points
HIn8E)
-50 +50 -50

HK$’'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

FERT TETT TETT

(1,396) 2,070 (1,664)

EEERS > HRERFEHZER
WA RRENFIEE 2 R > 815
NERBZBRESRAERRE -

F B EL E
AEENEREBETERSZIH X
BEENEFRRR - AAFRERYE
EHSUEERMEENKNEE
B BEEMARTERFR (R
FXRFENEERBEMNAE

ERRITRAENFE
1820239830 » AEEAIRITE
210,000,000 ;T &H BIRI1TFE =
HFEFR - REBEEEERT(G > R1T
BRIAZNEFE  BURELRSE
BIRTRAZFREEEZHENREE -

15 & B B B i {8 5F 14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023F9830H IEFEE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. Rl EMEIEBEREE

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk by any single debtor
as the exposure is spread over a number of individual and
institutional customers, except for the loans and advances and
accounts receivable as disclosed in notes 21 and 22.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

( )

AEEZRMGE D ZEPEERR
FTEURER - AEEUEREFE
—RURREREREERR > 1T}
MR DS EEAREERR
MW 2122 BEZER N B R
& U BR SR BR Sb o

ARHFHAEBEREESFREE
Ao EEFRzEmMEE  ZiR
THEBEZEERBRAIR -

AEBENREEERBFREEN
A

Internal credit rating

P BB 1S & 5F 4R

Description
fi it

ECL categories
FEHEESEEN

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts or debtor
frequently repays after due dates in full

15 & Bz HFHNENRBRREE BT AR ARE
BHEAKECTIHEHERHEE

Medium risk There have been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

HE R b RIENMBERXINLER > FEERRESE
B BB RE K 18 38 10

High risk There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired

= 3 BERBRAEEHREERE
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12m ECL

REREHEEEE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

EHEREERIE -
WARBEEEFEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired

S HATEHAEE BB -
BEELEEERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023%F9830H IEFE
38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. Rl EMEIEBIEREE

AND POLICIES (continued) f*énll‘*&mfﬁ S (42)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
TR E S FL2023F 98308 &20224

(continued)
IR HAKETMEERBEEMIE

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group'’s
financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment as at

30 September 2023 and 30 September 2022: EEETE2EERRFERB
Internal
credit rating 12m or lifetime ECL 2023 Gross carrying amount 2022 Gross ca unt
REEE TR REAHHAENEEHR 023 FREAE kA2 E
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TERT FERT T TEL
Financial assets at amortised cost
REEREHEZEHEE
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments Low risk 12m ECL 12,650
(notes (1) & (i)
HtESERS  RERBARBIZ0)R() RER NEABHEERE
Egans and advances 21 Low risk 12m ECL 1,392,040 1,446,459
ARRER EAR NEARHELEHA
Medium risk Lifetime ECL = not credit-impaired 148,738 256,177
HEAR EHRAEEBR-LARBLESHRE
High risk Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 1,232,221 2,772,999 1,313,554 3,016,190
BER PHRBEEBR-CRLEEARE
Accounts receivable — secured margin loans 2 Low risk 12m ECL 59,459 260,749
RHikR-BRFRRAR -1 NEARSEEFS
Medium risk Lifetime ECL = not credit-impaired 7,808 2,055
HERR CHRMEERR - RELEEHE
High risk Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 1,939,553 2,006,820 1,768,585 2,031,389
BAR CHRMEEFE-BELEENE
Account; receivable ~ others (Note (i) 22 Low/Medium risk  Lifetime ECL = not credit-impaired 137,367 92,968
RMERR— 240 (722 (1) f/0EER  AERBEAGA-LRELEEHE
High risk Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 9,094 146,461 2,860 95,828
BER EHRBEEBR-CRLEEARE
Pledged bank deposits — general accounts (note (i) 23 Low risk 12m ECL 160,000 160,000
BERROER-—RERRW2() 23 fER NERRHEEEE
Bank balances and cash -~ segregated accounts 24 Low risk 12m ECL 1,406,891 1,573,074
(note (i)
RTEBRRE-BILRP (W) 24 BER NEABBEEERR
Bank balances and cash ~ general accounts 24 Low risk 12m ECL 1,002,263 860,796
(note (i)
RITESERRE-—REA W) 24 BAER NERRHEEEE
Notes: g2
() Prepayments of HK$1,528,000 (2022: HK$1,711,000) under other () HMEWER  ZehBENREBEET

debtors, deposits and prepayments were not classified as financial

assets at amortised cost.

(i) The directors of the Company consider the impacts of the ECL are
immaterial to the Group and no reconciliation loss allowances have

been prepared.

2 FA {4 7R 181,528,000 7t (20224

1,711,000 7t) it

ROBRILHHN

KrEAEBZEMEE °

ERBEFDH

» FAHA(EE

EBRBEZ®

EHAEEMSLAEKR > A ER
HHRBREME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023F9830H IEFEE
38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. Rl EMEIEBEREE

PD 160

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The estimated default rates for each class of financial assets
are estimated based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the respective class of financial assets and are
adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including macroeconomic data such as
GDP growth, unemployment, benchmark interest rates and house
prices. The identification of internal credit rating for individual
financial assets is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific financial assets is updated.

Definition of 12m ECL, Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) and
Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) are as below:

12m ECL (stage 1):

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired)
(stage 2):

Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
(stage 3):

Emperor Capital Group Limited 22 £
Annual Report 2022 / 2023 &R

Exposures where there have not
been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition and
that are not credit-impaired upon
origination, the portion of the lifetime
ECL associated with the probability
of default events occurring within the
next 12 months is recognised.

Exposures where there have been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but are not credit-
impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting
the remaining lifetime of the financial
asset) is recognised.

Exposures are assessed as credit-
impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that
asset have occurred. For exposures
that have become credit-impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognised and interest
revenue is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (gross carrying amount net
of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount from the beginning of
the subsequent reporting period.

BEXREEERA

( )

BRETMEEZLFENRDRE
BRTMEERNZASAFHRNZB
EHEREORMGE > UL ERFME
AREBBRBAANYNZAEBIEER
EHAEE @%llﬂqiémﬁi‘ﬁ

REX BENRNBESLEHL
BEF o %ﬁiﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂ%%ﬁ
EENBEEFRZHR » LIERE
MERRETMEEZRBAEN -

REPFEHEEBE 2HRARE
EFER(RELEEERE) K2R
HEERR(BELEGEERE) ZEE
mE:

12ERFEHE MEVFTHESELRIL

EBEE(E—- BEXEGEERBRIEN
PEER) : BERELERKILEREE
R B ER R121E
BRELEENEHZ
FIEt Bz 28
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DURESR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE
38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. Rl EMEIEEIENRKE

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The management determines staging of financial assets
subject to ECL assessment based on qualitative and
quantitative factors, if applicable, including overdue period
of interest and principal, change in fair value of pledged
listed securities or properties that triggered the margin calls
for additional collateral or constituted events of breach of
contracts respectively, and status of margin calls.

The following tables show reconciliation of gross carrying
amount and loss allowances that has been recognised for
loans and advances and accounts receivable from margin
client.

(#7)
{2 £ LW e L M 3T 45 (49)

EEEBREEMENEERER (WEH)
MERETHEPEEBERIGNE
MEENHRE ZERAXBEFE
A @B~ 25 8 E8MNE
B EAERREEINCIRRLE
MEBNEHZERFLDE S E
ZRNFEEHUNENEFRE S EH
BIAR BE o

TRITME R B R K B FHF
ERERRMAERNIRAGERBGERRE
BZHER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H L FE
38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. Rl EMEIEBEREE

AND POLICIES (continued) (#)

Credit risk and impairment assessment f“féﬂl‘“&?liﬂﬁnﬁﬁ (#&)
(continued)

Loans and advances — loss allowance BaRBR—EIEEE

30 September 2023 2023%9H30H

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired)

B
ERGA 2MABER
2@ AT BAEEE
ERSH EHHE)  ERAE) @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#%  FER  TER TR
(Note(})
(W)

Loss allowance as at 1 October 2022 K2022E10B1H 2 B EEE ) 656,572 659,426
Changes in the loss allowance due to K202F 10 EREMEEEE 2 BRER
financial assets as at 1 October 2022 )

- Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL —HNEREHREES ?EE{%?%EH ik
(not credit-impaired) EEBEB(URELEEHAE)

= Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL -HEAEAEEREERE2HTES
(credit-impaired) (Note (i) EEFREELEERE) (H#0)

- Transfer from lifetime ECL -HEBEHEESR (DAELEE WE)
(not credit-impaired) to lifetime ECL SRz MRNEEEABRER
(credit-impaired) (Note (i) ) (2 ()

= Transfer from lifetime ECL -HRERACERB (I ABEEERE)
(not credit-impaired) to 12m ECL ERENERRHEEERR

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising -HNEAEREEERERE 2 HRH
from financial assets transferred EERB(IXELEEEHE) 2 &/
from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL BEMELZRMEEBRZENIE
(not credit-impaired) R

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising -HEAEAEEREERE TS
from financial assets transferred EEBBECEEERHE )Z%nﬂé
from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL EMELZBREERRCEMGE
(credit-impaired) (Note (i) BRI

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising -HEMBMEEEA (RS EEOHE)
from financial assets transferred BRECNRMEERB(CELEREE
from lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) AB)ZEMEEMET 7 BME g5
to lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) BREZENNEFEMWZ))

(Note (i)

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising ~HEHEREEEE(LRELEEHE)
from financial assets transferred BRENEARMEEREZERE
from lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) EMELZBHGERBZEMGNE
to 12m ECL R

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising -H2HBRHEEFB(EEEEEAA)
from financial assets transferred BEENEARRLEFRE SREE
from lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) MELZRBEEREZENFERE
to 12m ECL

- Net remeasurement of ECL due to change ~ —~REEARZIMEREBRZ RHAES
in credit risk without transfer of stage BE BHHES B ()

(Note (i) 132,090 131,238
New financial assets originated or purchased ~ B4 HBEAZ M &7 E E (& (i)

(Note (i) 17,981 18,105
Financial assets that have been derecognised ~ B4 ILEHAZ £FEE () (774)
Written off of financial assets (Note () MEEREE W) (160,638) (160,638)
As at 30 September 2023 15202398301 695,416 696,292
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2023 &, £2023%F9830H IEFE
38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. Rl EMEIEBIEREE

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued)

30 September 2022

(#7)
{2 £ LW e L M 3T 45 (49)

BEmRk2

20227 9H30H

12m ECL

28RBS

EEE#
HKS$'000
TER

Lifetime ECL

(not credit-
impaired)
2 HTEH
EakE

(at
HK$'000

TERT

o —RTIR A ()

Lifetime ECL

(credit-
impaired)

.‘.
HKS$'000
TER

Loss allowance as at 1 October 2021 K2021E1081HZ BREE 5,745 474 1,020,230 1,026,449
Changes in the loss allowance due to K00 F108 BRERHEEESL 2 BBEE
financial assets as at 1 October 2021 28
= Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL -MIEABHEE % BRELHER
(not credit-impaired) FEBRB (L ﬂi YEEHE) (99) 99 - -
- Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL -HBEARAEEREE: é‘?’“ﬁﬁi‘ﬁﬁﬂ
(credit-impaired) (Note (7)) 5 QEETE(E?‘ EERE) H20) (4,763) - 4763 -
- Transfer from lifetime ECL -HEBERCERB (I RELE ‘*m )
(not credit-impaired) to lifetime ECL ii%%’* CHEREEER(EELES
(credit-impaired) (Note (i) BB (W) - (319) 319 -
= Transfer from lifetime ECL -HEBEACER B (I XELEEEHE)
(not credit-impaired) to 12m ECL BR 1121@ BEHEER 5?@ 37 (37) - -

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising -mEAESAE EIE BEEZL2HRE

from financial assets transferred EERB(IXELEEEHE) 2 &/

from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL BEMELZRBEEBRZENIE

(not credit-impaired) R - 218 - 218
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising -HEAEAEEREERE 2B

from financial assets transferred EEHSB (E?‘ $1 g AE) z2mE

from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL EMELZBRGEERBZENHE

(credit-impaired) (Note (7)) BRI - - 73,061 73,061
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising -M2H ?E HEERRIRELRE SAE )

from financial assets transferred BRE2HENRCERR (Eé"‘if

from lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) i@ﬁ)z%ﬂééjﬁéiﬁﬁﬂm

to lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) BEZERAEFEMWZ0)

(Note (i) - - 33,037 33,037

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising -HEHEREEEE(LAELEEHE)

from financial assets transferred BE21EH BHEEREBZEREE

from lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) MELZBAGEREZENHERE

to 12m ECL 50 - - 50
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising ~-MEEBHEEFE CEEEERE)

from financial assets transferred BEENEABRRLEFRE SREE

from lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) MELEZRAGEREZENIEFE

to 12m ECL 9 - - 9
- Net remeasurement of ECL due to change REERREHMBEREELE BHEE

in credit risk without transfer of stage BEZENAEZFBWEN)

(Note (iv)) 839 102 208,469 209,410

New financial assets originated or purchased ~ B4 HEAZ M &7 E E (W& (i)

(Note (i) 838 95 3853 4836
Financial assets that have been derecognised ~ E&ILHAz2RMEE (408) (76) (2,064) (2,548)
Transferred to accounts receivable from ERTRNEREFRERRIWED)

Secured margin clients (Note (v)) - - (264,074) (264,074)
Written off of financial assets (Note () MEEREE W) - - (421,022) (421,022)
As at 30 September 2022 1£2022E9830H 2,298 556 656,572 659,426
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCI
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued)
Notes:

0) During the year ended 30 September 2023, loans and advances
with a gross carrying amount of approximately HKS$82 million
(2022: HKS$179 million), which were classified as stage 1 as
at beginning of the reporting period, were assessed as credit-
impaired and were transferred to stage 3. Accordingly, the
impairment allowance of approximately HK$149,000 (2022:
HKS5 million) made under 12m ECL was transferred to lifetime
ECL (credit-impaired). Additional re-measurement of impairment
allowance of approximately HKS17 million (2022: HKS73 million)
was made under lifetime ECL (credit impaired) by the management
under the individual assessment.

As at 30 September 2023, included in these exposures of
approximately HK$82 million (2022: HKS179 million) was loans and
advances with gross carrying amounts of approximately HKS80
million (2022: HKS36 million) which were partially supported by
secured properties held by the borrowers in Hong Kong with an
impairment allowance of approximately HKS$15 million (2022:
HKSNIl) made during the year. The Group has the rights on these
secured properties in Hong Kong held by the borrowers to repay
the outstanding loans and advances of approximately HKS65
million (2022: HKS36 million).

As at 30 September 2023, included in these exposures of
approximately HK$82 million (2022: HKS$179 million) was
unsecured loans and advances with gross carrying amounts
of approximately HKS2 million (2022: HKS$37 million) and an
impairment allowance of approximately HKS2 million (2022: HKS16
million) was made during the year.

As at 30 September 2022, included in these exposures of
approximately HK$179 million was loans and advances with gross
carrying amount of approximately HK$S106 million supported by
listed securities of the borrowers held in custody by a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and an impairment allowance
of approximately HKS57 million was made during the year due
to a decrease in the fair value of these listed securities caused
by market fluctuations. The Group has the rights on these listed
securities to repay these remaining outstanding exposures of
approximately HKS$45 million.

AL STATEMENTS

38. %@HB‘*%EEF&H%

B RBrh—E5HEREEE)
o=

() #=E2023F98308ILFE R
FHU N EAE—RBERAEEN
82,000,0005 7T (20224F : 179,000,000
BIT) CERNRBHREFHADELERE
BRE HEEBEES =R Eik 5L
12{E B FERE ERIBIE MEL 2 BERE
#%49149,0003 75 (20224 15,000,000
B EEEE2HHEHPEERE (B
BEEERE) - EEEREBERTE
EREZPEBEERE (BELEEER
B) BMEHEBIINEMFTEREREDN
17,000,00038 7% (20224 : 73,000,000
HBr) o

#2202349830H > £982,000,00058 ¢
(20224 :179,000,00087T) 2% %
B EEREAR(EA980,000,000E 7T
(20224 :36,000,000387T) 2 EA &
B MO LUERAREBREZEIR
YR I BERELRERBLY
15,000,000 7T (20224 : BH ) o7&
EEERFEREFRANTETERENZES
BRFYEEEREEERNBIY
65,000,000 7T (20224 : 36,000,000
BIT) °

#L202349830H > 482,000,000 ¢
(20224 :179,000,00087T) 2% %
FIERE R EARE492,000,0008 7T
(20224 :37,000,00058 75) Z MEiKim
BRNBE T EEREHBERELN
2,000,000 7T (20224 : 16,000,000
7o) °©

1520224 9H30H>#3179,000,000
BRUZzRERETLEREMAEY
106,000,00078 02 ER KRB LUER
AHBARE —H2ENBARRER
Bz Eh@EsER tBERETSK
FERZT LHEFZAFETREME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)

(continued)

The fair values of the properties in Canada were arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group. The fair value
was based on the market approach, by comparing recent market
transactions of similar interests located in the surrounding area
and then making adjustments to the transaction prices of the
comparables based on elements of comparison. In determining
the fair value of the relevant properties, the management work
closely with the qualified external valuer to determine appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. The
management considered that the major adjustment on the fair
value of these properties related to the adjustment relating to size,
view, location and relative quality.

As at 30 September 2023 and 2022, the fair value of the property
in Hong Kong was determined by the management under
the market approach which was based on market observable
transactions of similar interests located in the same building,
estate or village with reference to an indicative offering price from
an interested buyer. The management considered that the major
adjustment on the fair value of these properties related to the floor
level adjustment on individual floors of the property and that a
higher level would have a higher fair value.

In determining the allowances for credit-impaired loans and
advances with the pledged properties as mentioned above, the
management takes into account the fair value of collateral and
the outstanding balance of loans receivable individually taking
into account any executable settlement plan and realisation
arrangements.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EEEXREE B[R AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i) During the year ended 30 September 2023, loans and advances
with gross carrying amount of approximately HKS95 million (2022:
HKS54 million), which were classified as stage 2 as at beginning
of the reporting period, were assessed as credit-impaired
and were transferred to stage 3. Accordingly, the impairment
allowance of approximately HKS$0.2 million (2022: HKS0.3 million)
made under lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) was transferred
to lifetime ECL (credit-impaired). Additional re-measurement of
impairment allowance of approximately HKS$32 million (2022:
HKS$33 million) was made under lifetime ECL (credit impaired) by
the management under the individual assessment. The remaining
loans and advances of gross carrying amount of approximately
HKS$62.8 million (2022: HKS$20.7 million) was supported by secured
properties held by the borrowers in Hong Kong.

(iiiy  During the year ended 30 September 2023, impairment allowances
HKS0.1 million (2022: HKS0.9 million) was made against new
financial assets originated or purchased under 12m ECL with the
gross carrying amount of HK$596 million (2022: HKS671 million),
which included newly granted mortgage loans and unsecured loans
of gross carrying amount of HK$595 million (2022: HKS662 million)
and HKS1 million (2022: HKS9 million) respectively. The 12m ECL
has taken into account the fair value of the related properties in
Hong Kong or pledged securities, if any, under the ECL model.

During the year ended 30 September 2023, impairment allowances
of HKSNil million (2022: HKS0.1 million) was made against new
financial assets originated or purchased under lifetime ECL (not
credit-impaired) with the gross carrying amount of HKS3 million
(2022: HKS80 million), which included newly granted mortgage
loans and newly granted unsecured loans of gross carrying amount
of HKS3 million (2022: HKS77 million) and HKSNil million (2022:
HKS3 million) respectively. The lifetime ECL (not-credit-impaired)
has taken into account the fair value of the related properties in
Hong Kong or pledged securities, if any, under the ECL model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kRE MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(continued)

During the year ended 30 September 2023, included in the
impairment allowance of approximately HKS$18 million (2022:
HKS4 million) from new financial assets originated or purchased
under lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) was mainly related to the
gross carrying amount of approximately HKS$22 million (2022:
HKS87 million). The loans and advances of HK$22 million as at
30 September 2023 were mainly mortgage loans of HKS6 million
granted during the year with interest and principal overdue for more
than 90 days and were partially supported by secured properties
held by the borrowers with impairment allowance of approximately
HKS2 million made during the year. The remaining gross carrying
amount of approximately HK$16 million was unsecured loans
overdue for more than 90 days as at year end and impairment
allowance of approximately HKS$16 million was made for the year.

Included in impairment allowance of approximately HK$132
million (2022: HKS$208 million) recognised for those remaining
under lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) are mainly due to reversal of
impairment allowance of term loans approximately HKS14 million
and impairment allowance of mortgage loans approximately
HKS$146 million respectively, in respect of gross carrying amount
of approximately HK$159 million and HKS432 million respectively
as at 30 September 2023. Included in the term loan reversal of
impairment allowance are impairment of approximately HK$25
million as a result of further decrease in fair value of pledged listed
securities and deterioration of financial ability of the borrowers
of gross carrying amount of approximately HK$93 million, and a
reversal of impairment allowance of approximately HKS39 million
of gross carrying amount of HKS66 million as at 30 September
2023 based on actual repayments during the year and expected
repayments from the borrowers received subsequent to year end.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Group executed an
account combination by transferring 16 stage 3 term loans from
Emperor Prestige Credit Limited (“"EPCL") to Emperor Securities
Limited (“ESL"), both of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group, to combine with the margin loans of the same borrowers in
ESL. Based on account opening agreement, all the assets held in
the margin accounts are charged to the margin loan by way of first
fixed charge and the Group shall be entitled at any time without
notice to combine and/or consolidate all or any of the client’s
accounts and exposures within the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2023 & £2023F9830H IEFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(v)  (continued)

The loan combination is performed through the settlement of
term loan in EPCL with additional margin loan from ESL. Through
the account combination, loans and advances of gross carrying
amount and impairment allowance of approximately HKS$372
million and HKS$264 million are merged with the amount receivable
of the respective margin clients.

(vi)  The Group writes off loans and advances of gross carrying amount
of approximately HKS161 million (2022: HKS421 million) which
has 